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THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED

About MPS

The Medical Protection Society 1s the leading provider of
comprehensive professional ndemnity and expert advice o
doctors, dentists and heaith professionals around the world

We are a mutual, not-for-profit organisation offenng more than
270,000 members help with legal and ettucal problems that anse
from therr professional practice This includes clinical negligence
clams, complants, medical councit Inquires, legal and ethical
diermmas, disciplinary procedures, inquests and fatal-accrdent
INQuIres

Farmess 18 at the heart of how we conduct our business We
actvely protect and promote the interests of members and the
wider profession Equally, we believe that patients who have
suffered harm from neglgent treatment should receve far
compensation We promote safer practice by runaing nsk
management and education programmes 10 reduce avoidable
harm MPS 1s not an Insurance company

The benefits of membership are discreticnary — this allows us the
flexioily 1o provide help and support even N unusug
circumstances
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“MPS Council ... undertakes regular review
of all aspects of risk to ensure that the
many possible ways of mitigating risk are
embedded throughout the organisation”

Nicholas Davies
Charman of the Council

Chairman’s statement

Public scrutiny of both the medical and dental professions
continues to be intense There seems to be no Imit to the
medicolegal pitfalls that continue to beset us In 2010 a record
number of our members picked up the telephone to seek expert
advice, assistance and reassurance from a professional colleague
at MPS We answered nearty 48,000 such calls from our UK and
Ireland members, an average of about 200 calls gach working day
The ready access to this help, avallable 24/7 throughout the year,
1S a much-valued benefit of MPS membership We have always
encouraged adwvice to be sought at the earliest possible
opporturity Prompt comrective action is much more likely to lead to
resolution acceptable to all partes, and may well avoid any
possibility of legal action, saving much protracted heartache and
expense

Nonetheless it 15 wishful thinking to conclude that all medicolegat
problems are solved so easily Last year's annual report drew atiention
0 a womymng nse in both the number of clams and the amount of
money needed In settlements Sadly this frend of Ncreasing Ingation
has contnued N 2010 against owr members In many countnes, with
an nevitable assocated rcreasa in kegal costs it the UK, however,
we are hopeful that mplermentation of the recommendsations In Lord
Justice Jackson's review of ovil costs should reduce costs, especialy
in clarns of lower value where legal fees frequently exceed damages

The sums awarded for damages in higher value claims are a different
matter, however These have ncreased significantly, especially In
South Afnca and the UK (excludng Scotland) Indeed the latter now
has some of the highest awards seen anywhere in the world, ncluding
North Amenca Damages sought for care of the most severely njured
patients can seem extremne Clamants’ solicitors may seek extensve
modfications to a home, even 1o the extent of bulding a new house
They may clam the cost of provdng skdled nursing care round the
clock at horme approaches £250,000 per annum, and of course with
good care these patients can enyoy a much-mproved Iife expectancy
compared with the past This has resulted n courts awarding very
lrge amounts for personal inury, with some awards exceeding
£10mion

In the UK a further threat on the honzon could ncrease the potential
financial burden borne by all ndemnifiesrs The Lord Chancellor s
consdenng submissions from clamants® solictors on the discount
rate, used to predict ikely rvestment retums and so derve the lump
sum needed today to yreld the desred future annual payments They
suggest this should reflect the cument low nterest rate envwonment
and be reduced from its present 2 5% rate, even though it seems
unlkely that interest rates will reman low for much longer This would
have a very significant impact on high value clams, ncreasing some
by wel over 40% Clrwcal neglgence in the NHS 15 a huge and
rcreasing cost to the taxpayer £651m n 2009-10, and ths amourt
would ncrease considerably with a lower discourt rate MPS will be

lobbying energetically on your behalf

Members shoukd be reassured by the accounts presented here MPS
has investrments and bank depostts of £©1 Bbillon, which | beleve to
be more than adequate to meet current challenges However we
reman acutely aware of recent fallres of nsk management and
corporate governance N many of the world's largest banks and other
financial nsttutons  These falures resutted n the widespread
recession of the last couple of years, affecting all countries In which wa
operate, but particulary damaging to the economies of Ireland and
the UK MPS Councll therefore undertakes regular review of all
aspects of nsk to ensure ihat the many possible ways of mitigating nsk
are embedded throughout the organisation

To take just one example, the Clams Adwvisory Committee, whose
members are Independent doctars drawn from a wide vanety of
different specialies, plays an important role N providing clinical advice
to MPS stafl handiing clams around the world, particutarly those of
high value or raising significant ponts of professional prnciple This
committee sees two broad types of harm to patients ansng from
alleged negligence Firstly, there are rare but senous complications of
treatment that ether cannot be foreseen or which many doctors rmight
consider unduly mtrusve or alarmist to mclude n information gven
beforenand to ther patients Secondly, some problems recur all too
often and are ndefensible A mundane but common example Is nerve
damage caused by an ncomect technique of ntramuscular nection
Such recurent themes are often reporied mv Casebook, but akso
addressed as part of our rapdly developing educational programime
drawing on our extensve axperence Many excellent workshops in
this prograrmme are free to MPS members The first to be developed,
Mastenng Your Risk, has now been attended by more than 10,000
doctors n eght diferent countnes

We have expenenced a further nse n expendiure incurred
representng members at disciplinary heanngs  This has beenatheme
In past years, and sadly shows no sign of abating The GMCs most
recent report (2009) revealed a 32% ncrease n the number of fitness
to practise heanngs Referrals gving nse to concerns about a doctor's
ftness to practise showed a more modest Increase, 11%, but have
reached the level where one doctor n every 40 18 being reported to
the GMC each year

There has been only one change to the membership of Councll N
2010 Kathryn Harley stepped down kst June, having chared the
Board of Dental Protecton since June 2006, and we are most grateful
for &l her hard work n these roles In her place we extend a warm
welcorme to Professor Trevor Burke from the Brmingham School of
Dentstry

Nicholas Davies
Charman of the Council
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“Subscriptions are always set as farly as
possible, with the appropriate rates
charged for each specialty within each
country in which MPS operates.”

Tony Mason
Chief Executve

Chief Executive’s report

MPS has again had a good year from the point of view of the
return on our investments, despite the continued turmol in
world markets However, the detenoration in claims expenence,
particularly in the UK (apart from Scotland) and South Afnca,
has continued at a faster rate than before This Is not good
news and we have further increased our provisions to allow for
what has been a major increase in both the number of reported
claims and the value of the awards

MPS finshed 2010 with gross assets of more than £1 8bilion,
a rnse of over £200millon n the year After providing for
outstanding reported clams and cther katilities, the amount
avallable to meet future claims from adverse clinical incidents,
which had already occurred by the end of 2010 but had not yet
been reported to MPS, increased from £913m to £1,019m
Although this was an increase of £106m over the year, our
actuaries have calculated that the amount required to meet
future unreported clams rose by more than this amount
Forlunately, MPS remamns i a strong position with a healthy
surplus of assets over the projected value of future clams
despite the backward step in our funding poesition during 2010
This highbghts the past wisdom of mantaring a prudent
financral polcy

The worsening clams experignce n England, Wales and
Naorthern freland 1s due pnmarly to two key factors First, the
numyers of claims aganst GPs, both medical and dental, have
seen a steep increase over the last few years coupled with a
major jump N the average value of settled medical claims Of
equal concern 1 the dramatic nse in the value of clams
involving catastrophic iyury, which have more than doubled I
a short period of tme This has led to settlements that dwarf
comparable clams anywhere else In the weorld, and are now
hugher than in the USA, which will be a surprnse to many

The cost of medical malpractice premiums in the USA reached
a cnisis point 20 years ago and the solution adopted n many
states was to introduce tort law reform which in vanous ways
restricted or capped damages, so that claims above US$5m
are unusual N most states and exceptional above US$E10m
This compares with awards in the UK that for the most senous
cases of catastrophic inury involving penodical payments may
wel' now exceed £10m when converted 1o a2 lump sum, or
£15m f the Indemnifier I1s forced to purchase an annuity to settie
the periodical payment

MPS 15 not the only organisation to experience such a
significant rise in the number and value of clams, the NHS
Litrgation Authorty has reported smitarly dramatic increases
The level of awards n the UK has now reached the point where
if a consultant obstetrician working in the NHS had to purchase
ther own indemnity rather than being covered by the State,

then the cost would almost certainly exceed £500,000 pa faor
each doctor Clearly this 1s both unaffordable and unsustanable
without considerable government subsidy, and calls nto
question the current unrestraned application of English
Common Law when dealng with personal injury clams
involving ifelong care Legislators should decide on the level of
damages that society can afford to pay, along with all the other
tough decisions that must be taken when considenng public
expenditure

In South Afrnica, the worsening experience is largely amongst
the high risk specialbes and substantial mcreases in
subscnpbons are necessary for obstetrictans, neurosurgeons
and spinal surgeons Although unwelcome news for the
individuals involved, the proportion of income spent on medical
neghgence indemnity in South Afnca s still significantly lower
than most other countries in which MPS operates

It 1s not, however, all gloomy news and | am pleased to report
that we have been able to reduce subscrnptions for many
categories of member N a number of countries, INcluding
medical rates in Scotland and New Zealand and dental rates in
Hong Kong in other countries, subscrptions have generally
been frozen or nisen by no mora than local wage inflaton it 15
important for all members to understand that subscriptions are
always set as farly as possibie, with the appropriate rates
charged for each specialty within each country in which MPS
operates The am 1s for each country to fund its own nisk but to
have the back up of the central fund to protect aganst
fluctuations n clams expenence, which 1s one of the main
nenefits of belonging to an nternational mutual

In the UK, our response 1o the higher claims expenence s two-
fold First, we have implemented a significant increase In
subscriptions for those groups of members that have
demonstrably had worse expenence These groups include
GPs working in private practice and those doing a material
amount of out-of-hours work We have also ncreased rates
substantially for the highest nsk specialties, particularly private
obstetncians, neurcsurgeons and spinal surgeons There are In
fact very few private gbstetnicians practising in the UK and the
nurmbers are now bkely o dwindie to no more than a handful,
as the cost of providing Indemnity N most cases will now
outstrip ther earnings from private practice This was a move
we took with great refuctance but has been forced upon us by
the extraordinary awards currently being made by the Courts for
claims involing catastrophic injury

Our second response 1S to continue to support strongly the
legal reforms proposed by Lord Jackson that | mentioned last
year and also to press for a national debate on the need for tort
law reform along the lines of legislative changes introduced In
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Chief Executive's report continued

the USA in the 1990s and m Australia ten years ago It s rare
that politicians act without there being a crisis but | would argue
that the crisis here started several years ago and has been
largely hidden only because most catastrophic injury clams are
pad for by the State on an unfunded, pay-as-you-go basis Our
Policy Department contnues to forge excellent relationships
with key stakeholders in government, amongst regulators and
the professions across many countries and we are confident
that the important messages we have to give are being both
listened to and understood

Turning away from financial matters, MPS had a highly
successful year m 2010 Membership grew in all countries in
which we operate with the total number of members increasing
by almest 7,000 to more than 270,000 in a number of
countries, new competitors offerng a cheaper nsurance
product entered the market, which s something we generally
welcome as it gves members chaoce | am pleased to report
that to date very few indaiduals have chosen to leave MPS, as
once members understand the shortcomings of a clams made
polcy with standard small print restrictions, they better
appreciate the valug of the benefits provided by MPS

The MPS Communications Department had as busy a tme as
ever, producing a wide range of publications tailored for the
different needs of members arcund the world These nclude,
each year, 18 editions of Casebook for medical members, 15
editions of Aiskwise for dental members, and a growing number
of bespoke targeted publications, factsheets, e-bullstins and
boaklets, all of which can be found on our website

On the education front, | am delighted to report the number of
workshops, courses, fectures and seminars that MPS held in
2010 exceeded 1,500 The demand from members to attend
these educational actvities continues to grow and the
enthusiasm 15 best demonstrated by the “Ethics For Al
seminar held in Cape Town In November, when around 1,400
members attended probably the largest gathenng of MPS
members in our hustory MPS remains fully committed to our
educational programme and to help provide our members with
all the tools and skills necessary t0 mest the increasing
chaflenges faced in professional practice Ouwr website also
contains details of all educational events

Dunng these troubled economic times we are very much aware
of the financial difficuities faced by some of our members,
particularly In thase countries that have sufiered some traumatic
cutbacks In public expenditure 1t 1s therefore wital that MPS
responds by being vigilant over keeping down our own costs
whilst ensuring that we continue to provide the high level of
service expected by members This 1s a careful balancing act
and t would like to extend a huge thank you to all MPS staff who

day in and day out show dedicaton and commitment to
upholding our core values of Qualty and Farness in all our
dealings with members

The coming 12 meoenths wilt undoubtedly throw up fresh
challenges for MPS whether they be investment, regulatory or
clams related Al members, however, can contnue to be
assured that they belong to a strong, secure mutual
organisation that 15 totally focused on the needs of our
membership and always acts in your collective best mterests

Teny Mason
Chuef Executve




“Members should be assured that
MPS’s finances remain in robust

health.”

Simon Kaylt
Finance Director

Finance Director’s report

Financial Overview

MPS8's balance sheet shows net assets at 31 December 2010
of £1,018 8million, an increase over the year of £105 6m On
the face of it this looks like a strong financial performance
However, the underlying picture 1s not quite so rosy

The balance sheet shows that total assets less current labiities
ncreased by 15 7%, whereas the provision for reported clam
habilties increased by 250% In addtion the income and
expenditure account shows the costs of clams, adwisory
services and administration are more than the subscrniption
income for the year These two statistics give a truer indication
of the challenges faced n 2010

The nature of clinical Indemnity 1s that costs anse many years
after the adverse inc:ident to which they relaie Thus, the costs
allowed for m 2010 relate o adverse incidents from past years,
whereas the subscription iIncome collected in 2010 15 intended
to meet the costs ansing from adverse incidents in 2010, which
will not be incurred for a number of years As MPS's
membership has grown year on year and as the average cost
of a past adverse incident will almost certanly be lower than the
average cost of a future adverse incident - that seems to be the
way of the world — it should be that subscription Income 1s
greater than the costs incurred in ary given year For 2010 this
18 not the case The reason for this 18 a significant Increase in the
number and cost of adverse incidents accounted for n the year,
which 1§ discussed in more detail below

Whilst this deterioration 15 a concern, members should be
reassured that t does not significantly compromise MPS’s
financial strength

Members may question the validity of the clarm that MPS’s financial
pasition 15 not significantly compromised MPS's financial strategy
has been to create a ‘cushion’ of funds N excess of that needed to
meet the expected cost of clams, to help protect MPS against
external financial shocks such as unexpected claims detenoration

An analogy could be an arbag in a car This ‘cushion’ helps protect
the occupant from harm resutting from some external shock, such
as being hit by another car After a crash, the arbag has helped
prevent harm to the occupant and the remedial action required for
the occupant 1s less urgent and less extreme than it might have
been f there was no arbag So it s with MPS, the financial strength
has been protected from the adverse mpact of claims detenoration
by the cushion of surplus funds and whilst remedial action 1s
required, i 15 less urgent and less extensive than it would have
been without the protection of the cushion Thus members should
be assured that MPS's finances reman in robust health and that
whilst subscnptions will need 1o nise to repar the damage to the
cushion, there 18 No need to take precipitate action n the kght of the
2010 clams expenence

Financial Performance

Subscription and other income

Subscrnption and other income increased by £21 0m, 7 6%
(2009 £23 3m, 9 2%} n the year Subscription mcome s a
function of member numbers, mix of members and rates
charged Total increase in the number of members who pay a
subscriptron In 2010 was about 4% {2009 about 49%) and the
general Increase in subscription rates was between 0% and 7%
(2009 0% and 6%) Taken together these movements provide
a broad explfanation of the total ncrease in subscenption iIncome

MPS continues to set subscription rates with the benefit of
advice from independent consulting actuares The rates are set
at a level at which MPS considers 1s necessary to meet the
future costs that will anse from the adverse incidents in the year
to which the subscnptions relate In the long run, i 15 not In
members’ — or ther patients' — interest to set rates that are
nsufficient to meet these future costs

Claims costs and associated legal costs

These are the costs incurred in the year n defending and
setiing clams as well as the costs of employing clams
management staff In addition this cost item includes the
change In the estimated cutstanding value of the future costs of
clams of negligence reported to MPS between the start and the
end of the year These costs were £258 7m in 2010, up by
£67 8m, 35 5% (2009 £30 4m, 18 9%) However, the £30 4m
Increase In 2008 is distorted by an exceptional tem in the 2008
figures a more comparable figure for the 2009 increase would
be about £B0m after excluding the 2008 exceptioral item

Based on this revised 2009 figure the increase for 2010 looks
reasonable but, compared to recent history, both are excessve
and Indicate a significant detenoration In the expected future
costs of clams of negligence For 2010, this detenoration in
clams results manly from UK (excluding Scotland) GP clams
and South African medical consultant clams experience

The aggregate cost of claims depends upon the frequency of
claims (the number per 1,000 members durna a specified
penod) and the average cost, or seventy, of each of these
clams In 2009 {compared tc 2008) MPS estimated that, for UK
(excluding Scottand} GPs, the aggregate cost (freguency x
severity) ncreased by 23% and in 2010 (compared to 2008} it
15 estimaled that the increase 15 32% Roughly the increase 1S in
equal measure between freguency and seventy Taking the two
years together, the increase 5 N excess of 70% on the
aggregate cost of claims recorded in 2008

It 18 unciear as to why the last two years have seen such an
increase In UK {excluding Scotland) GP clam frequency This
may be down to less continuty of care and a change in the
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Finance Director’s report continued

nature of the relationship between the patent and ther doctor
or dentist Qur expenence is that Qut of Houss care has a worse
clams record than In Hours care The economic climate may
also have pushed some people 1o pursue claims they would not
otherwise have pursued

Whatever the underlying reason, the facts cannot be dened
that clams expenence has deternorated signficantly over the
last two years and the current expectations are that future
clams expenence 18 likely to be Ittle better MPS 18 In the
business of taking on rnsk and to do so i is prudent to build
reserves aganst unexpected events, such as the increased
cost of clams MPS has such reserves and they have proved
adequate to protect MPS’s underlying strength, but the extent
of this recent experience means that MPS has no choice but to
Increase subscription rates for those groups which have had
detenorating claims expenence and 1o closely review the nsk it
continues to accept, N the nterest of the wider membership

Insurance recoveries

As well as holding reserves as a protection against unexpected
evenis, MPS also insures some of its risk, to provide protection
against very costly indvidual clams The recovenes of £4 9m
represent the actual recoveries and the increase In projected
recoveries at the end of 2010 compared to the end of 2009, if
all the reported claims settle at the expected value

The total value of possible recoveries that MPS can make
aganst its insurances f the reported claims were setiled at
expected ievels 15 £37 Om, which 1s shown in the debtors note
(note 13) and is sightly higher than the equivalent figure for
2008 of £35 6m

Advisory and associated legal costs

This represents the costs of employing doctors, dentists and
lawyers t0 provide advisory services to members for all
requests for assistance other than clams of negligence and
the cost of any external legal services incurred in supporting
members with these adwisory matters In addition, as with the
clams of negligence, this cost item also includes the
movement in the year, between the start and end of the year,
of the expected ifuture cost of requests for assistance with
matters other than negligence clams reported to MPS by 31
December 2010

These costs were £52 7m in the year, an increase of £5 8m,
12 5% (2009 £3 9m, 9 1%) In the year This cost element has
been increasing quite rapidly for many years and shows no sign
of abating Thus refiects the fact that there s an ever-increasing
demand from members for assistance with regulatory and
disciplinary matters and that these matters are increasingly
complex and legalistic 2010 continues the trend seen first in
2008, where MPS has had to spend more on legal fees in this
area than it has in defending claims of neghgence

Education, pubhcations and external relations

These are the costs of developing and delivering educational
and sk management services to members as well as providing
a varety of pubhcations, with the am of reducing nsk and
laising with regulators, legislators and  professional
representative bodies around the world on behalf of members
and the wider professions, on matters relevant to MPS and its
members

These costs were £7 9m during the year, an increase of £2 4m,
43 8% (2009 £2 3m, 74 0%) In the year Much of the costs
included in this heading are relatively new, and the percentage
increase shows that MPS has been rapidily spending in this area
to develop its educatien and nsk management services The
rate of ncrease has slowed slightly as this function matures,
and as the nature of the spend changes from that of
establishing an education and risk managemenit function to that
of delivering the education and nsk management traning

MPS exceeded #s plans for 2010 by delwverng over 1,500
educational workshops, courses, lectures and seminars —
mainly to members — which 1s nearly a 173% Increase on 2009
In 2011 MPS plans to deliver a smilar number of educational
events

Administration expenses

These are the costs of running the business, other than those
costs related to the management of clams or the prowsion of
advisory or educational services and external refations, which
are dealt with elsewhere This leaves common services such as
finance, IT, human resources, marketing, office accommodation
and membership services

The costs were £17 Om in 2010, an increase of £1 4m, ¢ 0%
{2009 £02m, 12%) In the year MPS continues to invest n
resources focused on delivering service to members In 2010
the number of staff 1n membership services was ncreased 1o
ensure service standard during the peak renewal period and the
‘opening’ tmes for membership helpline service were extended
to 8am to 6 30pm The number of medico and dentolegal
consultants delvermg front Iine adwvisory services has also
ncreased In addition, MPS continues to invest in [T systems
amed at improving effictency and service qualty This has
resulted in the taunch of a new website during the year and the
ntroduction of an electrormic document management system,
and work continues on developing systems that support the
business

Loss on exchange movements
MPS experiences a profit or loss on exchange movements in
two ways one 1s through trading and the otter 15 through the
matching of assets and habilites

Trading

As part of ts business, MPS will receve income and pay costs
In non-stering currencies Whenever 1t does this there may be
a penod of time between entering the :come or costs due In
the baoks of account and then entering the actuat receipt or
payment If the exchange rate moves during this time, whilst
there will be no difference in local currency between the inital
entry and subsequent entry, there may be a difference in sterling
terms and this will result in a profit or loss on exchange This
impact 15 relatvely minor compared to the impact from
matching assets and habiities

Matching

MPS has clams labiites n many different countries It 1s
important 10 ensure that the assets held to meet the future
costs of these clams are held in the same currency, so that
exchange rate movements do not after MPS's ability to fund
these clam labiities Although the exchange element of the
assets and labiities s closely matched by MPS, accounting
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disclosure requirements dictate that n these published
accounts, the exchange movements related to the clam
labiities are included within the “clarms costs” Iine and the
exchange movements related to assets are included in the line
"joss on exchange moverments™

The loss for 2010 at £0 2m 1s considerably smaller than the loss
n 2009 of £126m This reflects the increased stability within
exchange rate markets in 2010 compared to 2009

Conclusion

2010 saw an unexpected Increase in the frequency and severity
of clams, particularly related to UK {excluding Scotland) GPs
MPS's financial strength has ensured that these additional and
unexpected costs can be borne without sericus harm o the
future prospects of the cormpany, but subscrption rates for
some groups will Inevitably have 1o rise to help ensure MPS's
continued financial strength

A financrally strong MPS 15 n everyone's interest, that of
members, patents and staff and every effort 1s being taken by
Councit and the senior executive to ensure the continued
financial strength of the business, through subscription setting,
effective and efficent management of claims, cost control and
the ngorous assessment of indemnity rnisk

Simon Kayll
Finance Director
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Statistics
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MPS Council
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Vice-President
Chairman of the Council
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Tony Mason esocSe FIa

Frank Attwood BScEcon) FCA FRASA ACIS MAE ' 245
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Professor Trevor Burke pos msc BDS MDS FOSRCS{Eng) FDSRUSEdDn) FOSRCPS(Glas)
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lan Croxford ocus*

Nicholas DavIES MA LMOxant MHCE FRGA Chetrmen 2345 F
Mark Davis MB ChB MRGGP DRCOG DoccMed FRCPED”
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(Retrea 9 June 2610)

Tay Hassan wo FCEM MRCR DA FRGSEd* 7

Lecla Kapila OBE Ms B3 FRCS FRCPCH(Hon} 12
Simon Kayll Bat-ons) FCA MaA%®
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Tony Mason BSocSc FIA Chof Crecutve fox officig) 45
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4 Membaers of the Board of MPI {London) Limited 6 Members of the Board of Dental Protecton Lanited

2 Members of he Remuneration Comimittee 5 Members of the Board of MPS Risk Solutons bimaed 7 Members of the Educatonal Advisory Committee
3 Members of e Nominatons Committee
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MPS Council continued

“Every effort is being taken by Council and the senior
executive to ensure the continued financial strength
of the business, through subscription setting, effective
and efficient management of claims, cost control and
the rigorous assessment of indemnity risk.”

Frank Attwood

Frank Afttwoed was elected 1o the Council as 8 non-executve
director of MPS In June 2004 He s a Fellow of the Institute of
Chanered Accountants in England and Wales and was formerty a
partner N RSM Robson Rhodes LLP He was, until retinng on 31
December 2009, Deputy Char of the Internatonal Ethics
Standards Board of the International Federation of Accountants
His professional experience cavers audits of Insurance entities,
chardies and other requlated companies

Keith Bradley

Keith Bradley joined the Council as a non-executive director of
MPS in July 2007 and was elected by the membership at the
Annual General Meeting in June 2008 He 1s a member of the
House of Lords, 1s a non-executive director of the Chnstie Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust, Char of Manchester Safford and Trafford
LIFT Company and 1s Associate Vice-President of the University of
Manchester He was formerly member of Parlament for
Manchester Withington (1987 to 2005), served as a Government
Minister and a member of the Health Select Commitiee He 1s a
member of the Privy Council

Trevor Burke

Trevor Burke joned the Counci as a non-executive director of
MPS in June 2010 and as Charman of MPS’s subsidiary, Dental
Protection Limited, his postion on Council is ex officio and thus he
15 not elected by the membershpp He has been Professor of
Prmary Dental Care at the Universiy of Brmingham and Honorary
Consultant in Restorative Dentistry since 2000 He has authored
or co-authored four books and 225 published papers and has
been awarded over 75 research grants His man research
nterests include properties and applications of tooth-coloured
restoratve matenals, clnical evaluation of matengls and ther
performance N general dental practice, the design of an index of
oral heatth for cinical audit and quality control, and il health
retrement among dentists He 1s also an examiner for the Royal
College of Surgeons of Edinburgh and I1s the Editonal Director of
Dental Update

lan Croxford

lan Croxford joined the Councll as a non-executve director of
MPS m November 2007 and was elected by the membership at
the Annual General Meeting in June 2008 He s a bamster, being
called to the Bar n 1876 (Gray’s Inn), was apponted 2 QC n
1993, became a Bencher at Grays Inn in 2001 and was
appointed as a Deputy High Court Judge ({Chancery Dwvision) in
2007 lan's professional practice ts manly substantial commercial
and professional neglhgence (non-medical) itigation He has, since
1990, served as a Governor of Westchff High Scheol for Boys and
became Charrman of Governors in 1995

Nicholas Davies

Nick Davies was elected {0 the Councl as a non-executve
director of MPS In May 2001 and was appointed Charman of
Council m 2003 He has been a member of the Clams Advisory
Committee since 1996 He s a consultant anaesthetist at the
Southampton Unwersity Hospitals NHS Trust and was the Clinical
Services Director for Anaesthesia, Theatres and Intensve Care
from 1984 to 1997, and 2001 to 2003 He was also an examiner
for FRCA, Royal College of Anaesthetists from 1991 to 2003

Mark Davis

Mark Davis was elected to the Council as a non-executive director
of MPS 1n June 2009 He s in General Practice 1n Leeds where
he has been a principal since 1984 He acts as an Occupational
Medical Adviser to a number of occupational health companies
and since 2000 has acted as an independent expert witness
Since 2007 he has been a board member of a Practice Based
Commissioning consortium and from 2002-2006 was a member
of the Professional Executve Committee of the East Leeds
Primary Care Trust He has a special interest in cardiovascular
medicne and has served, or does serve, on a number of
Department of Health, Prirmary Care and NIHCE committess and
working groups related to cardiovascular medicing

Yasmin Drabu

Yasmin Drabu was elected to the Council as a non-executve
director of MPS in June 2008 Since February 2010 she has
worked at the Department of Health as Senior Medical Officer in
the Blood Policy — Infectious Discases Dmision She has been
from 2008-2010, the Medical Director and Director of Infection
Prevention and Contral at the Barking Havenng and Redbridge
NHS Trust, from 2000-2006, Medical Director at North Middlesex
University Hospital NHS Trust and from 1982-2008, consutftant
microbiologist, from 1986-1993 head of department, pathology,
from 1993-1995 clnical director, diagnostic services, and from
1995-1997 dwvisional director

Mary Favier

Mary Favier was elected to the Counci as a non-executive director
of MPS in June 2005 She works as a GP principal and partrer n
a practice n Cork She s Char of Education for the Insh College
of General Practtioners and a member of its executve She s on
the editonial board of Forum, the ICGP general practice magazine,
and a member of the editoral board of a health nformation
consumer website

Ta)j Hassan

Ta) Hassan was elected to the Council as a non-executive director
of MPS in June 2008 He has been a member of the MPS Clams
Advisory Committee simce 2004 and 1s a consultant m Emergency
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Medicine at Leeds General Infrmary, Leeds Teaching Hospitals
NHS Trust He 15 presently a council member of the College of
Emergency Medicine (CEM) as Regional Char for Yorkshire &
Humber He 1s also the national Director for eLeaming for the
College, an exarminer for Fellowship of the CEM, and a member of
the College’s Safety Committee

Leela Kapila

Lecla Kapla was elected to the Councl as a non-executve
director n June 2003 Until 2002 she was a consultant paediatne
surgeon at the University and City Hospials, Nottingham She
was visiting professaor at a number of internabonal hospitals and a
councl member of the Royal College of Surgeons from 1892 to
2004 She was Charman of the Children’s Surgical Forum at the
Royal College of Surgeons and Senior Vice-Prasident of the Royal
College of Surgeons from 2003 to 2004 Since 2004 she has
been a Trustee of Ranbows Hospice for Chidren and Young
People, Loughborough

Simon Kaylt

Simon Kayll was elected to the Council as an executve director in
June 2003 He 1 a Fellow of the institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales He joned MPS In February
1994 as Chief Accountant and was successvely apponted as
Financial Controller and finally Finance Director in January 1999
He was also appointed Company Secretary for MPS and most of
its subsidiary companies i March 2000 Hs current
responsibilities include finance, investment managerment,
reinsurance, internal audit, marketing, membership and oversight
of MPS Risk Solutiors Limited

Kevin Lews

Kevin Lews was elected to the Council as an execuiive diractor In
June 2003 He is formerly a general dental practitioner and was a
member of the onginal Board of Dental Protection Limited from
1989-1992, before being appointed as a dentolegal adviser with
Dental Protection in 1992 He was subsequently appainted Dental
Director of MPS in 1998 His responsibiiities include the delivery of
all aspects of dentolegal services to members as well as
marketing Dental Protection He was an Associate Editor of Dental
Practice (1981-2008), and snce 2008 has been the Consultant
Editor of Dentistry He was a member of GDC steenng group on
Recertffication and the former Vice President of the Bntish
Association for Dental Therapists and Council member of the
British Society for Restoratve Dentistry

Tony Mason

Tory Mason joined the Council as Chief Executive of MPS In
October 2007 He 1s a Fellow of the Institute of Actuanes Before
joinng MPS, he was a partner at Lane Clark & Peacock LLP a firm

of consulting actuanes He was sppointed a partner in 1985, was
apponted Managng Partner n 1987 and Charman in 2006 He
specialised in all matters concerning professional ndemrity cover
ansing from clinical neglgence, including the NHS in England and
Scotland, MPS and several Australian organisations Pnor to his
appontment as Chief Executive, he was an actuanal adviser to
MPS for more than 20 years

Eltzabeth Vallance

Elzabeth Vallance joined the Council as a non-executive drector
of MPS In February 2005 and was elected by the membership at
the Annuat General Meeting in June 2005 She sits on the board
of Charter European Trust ple and has been an independent
director of HMV Group, Norwich Union plc and Aviva ple She s a
Fellow of Quean Mary and of the Institute of Education, both of
the University of London She 1s Charman of | CAN, the children's
communication charty and was Charman of St George's
Healthcare NHS Trust and of the Advisory Committee on Clinical
Excellence Awards She 1s a magisirate on the nner London
bench, was High Shenff of Greater London, 2008-2009, and 1s on
the Committee on Standards in Public Life

Richard Youell

Richard Youell was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS n June 2003 He 1s a commercial arbitrator
specialising n insurance disputes and spent most of his working
life as a Lloyd's underwriter, from which he 15 now retred He 1s
also a non-executve director of Britannia Steamn Ship Insurance
Association Limited, Tindall Riey (Britannia) Limited and Liberty
Syndicate Managernent Ltd

MPS also has a President, Sk Peter Moms This position is not a
director of the board under the terms of the Companies Act, but
the President 1s efected by the membership and 1s entitled to, and
does, attend Councll mestngs, participating fully n the
discussions

Peter Morris

Peter Moms was elected President in June 2007 He 1s Nuffield
Professor of Surgery Ementus and former Charman of the
Department of Surgery and Drector of the Transplant Centre,
University of Oxford He was, from 2001 to 2004, President of the
Royal College of Surgeons of England He 15 also Director of the
Centre for Evidence in Transplantation at the Royal College of
Surgeons and the Unwversity of London and Honorary Professor,
Fellow of the Royal Soclety and the Academy of Medical
Sciences, and Foreign Member of both the Institute of Medicine of
the National Academy of Sciences and the American
Philosophical Society
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Advisers and Senior Staff

Claims Advisory Committee

Charman
Susan Sellers mMa cha mMb FRCOG

Vice-Chairman
Francis Cranfield M 85 MRACS LRCP DRCOG FRCGP

Secretary
Emma Halbinan L sHens) Sohciter

Claims Advisory Committee members
Martin Ashley Ma BS MRCS LACP FRCA MACGP FPGerl
Robert Battersby me 8s Frcs

Peter Campbell Me BS FRCSEd(Orth}

Nichotas Davies MA DMOxen) MRCP FRCA
Yasmin Drabu Me Che 0CH FRCPath FRCP
Mary Favier mg 8ch MICGP MRCGP

Patrick FOrbes M ChB rrRcoc

Tay Hassan mp FCEM MRCP DA FRCSED

Huw Jenking A MO FRCP FRCPCH

Leela Kaplla OBE MB BS FRCS FRCPCH{Hon)

John F Mayberry Dsc MD LLM FRCRiLandon & Glasgow) FRCP{reland)

Kerth Parsons me Che FRCSE FRCS
Professor Marc Winsiet ms Fres

Medical Division

Medical Director
Priya Singh LLEMHans) MB Ch3 MRGGP FFFLM

Deputy Medical Director
lain Barciay 116 MB Chi MACGR DRCOG FFFLM

Head of Madical Services {London)
Adison Metcalfe 8M MHCGE DRCOG PgDLaw MFFLM

Head of Medical Sarvices (Leeds)
Nick Clernents LLBHens) MB ChB DRCOG FRFLMVP)

Head of Medical Services (Edinburgh)

Rob Hendry M3 Chb MRGGP DRCOG MPhifLaw & Cihics) MBA FFFLM

Head of Membership Governance
Peter Mackenzie Ma MB BS MRCGP DRCOG PgDLaw MFFLM

Head of Medical Services — Asia
Ming Teon 11 v MSe MR ChR FRCSIE) FROSFng) Chivi MFFLM

Head of Medical Services — Afnca
Graham Howarth MB ChS MMec{O&G! MPHitBioethics)

Sentor Madicolegal Advisers

Angela Bramiey LLB(Hons) MB BS MRCGP FFFLM

Richard Dempster L1 BiHons} MB BS MRCGP DRCOG MFFLM
George Fermie 1LB MB ChS MPh FRCGS DFM FFFLM
Susan Jones ma LLB(Hons) MB BS MRCGP DRCOG FFFLM
David Stewart mMs BS DFrP M LM

Medicolegal Advisers

Zaid Al-Nayar BM MRCGP DRCOG DFD

John Barker J° MB BS DMJ ACH FFELM

Jonathan Bemstein Me Chs MRCGP BCH OITP PGDipCard
Pallavi Bradshaw Ma(Cantab) A MB BGhr MACOphth

Sarah COrmnock LLB MB ChB DA DRCOG DoccMed MRCGP MFFLM
Marika Davies ma 85c MB BS MRGS(Eng) MFFLM

Angela Farguhar MB chB MRCGP DRCCG MFFLM

Likane Fleld ma MB 83 FRCA PgDLaw MFFLM Barrister
Josephing Galvin ma M BCh BAG LACSI MRCGHES)
Chnstopher Godeseth BMeasciHons) BM BS MACS(E)

Lyn Gnffiths Lim mB 85 MFFLM

Heten Hartley 8sctiHons) MB ChB{Hons) FRGA MBA

Bryony HOOPEr 1M BM MEGSP MFPH DRCOG MFFI M

Daniel Kremer Ms BS DGH MRCGF LLB Bamster

Tom Lioyd LLM MB ChiB MD MRCS MFILM

Paul Mackin me 8BS Prd MRCPsych

Angelique Mastini mamB BS MFFLM

Sanya McCullough MB Bch MSe BAQ MRCOG DFFP

Jayne Mologdynski vB cri FRCA

Jangt Page LLM BSc MB BS FRCR MRCP MFFLM

Roger Palmer BSciHons) Phid MB BChr FRCP(FIN) FRCPCH
Carol SeyMOur MAIOxon) MAGantab] PhD FRCFath FRCP FFFLM Bamster
Richard Stacey maped cal Cinics & Law) MB Cni MACGP MITLM
Gilian Talbot vB BS MRCGP FFFLM

Sarah Townley ma ChB MACGP DFFF

General Practice Complaints Advisers
Tern Bonnict

Sue Taylor pa (Open)

Patricia Berlyn

Medicolegal Consultants

UK

Rachel Birch em MRCGP DRCOG DFFP

Roger Black ma Cha MPhi DRCOG MRCGP DFFP DFM

Dawvid Blaney BsciHons) MB ChB EdD FROGP FACP(ED)

Albert Day Jp LLM MB ChB FRCGP DOBsIRCOG FFFLM

Julian Pedley Mapediswi MSe MB BS FFPHM DTMEH FFFLM
Williarn Mathewson Ma ChB MPh FRCRCdiR TRCGP DGM DFM
Wiliam Smith me che MRCGR

freland
Alex Reld MB 8Ch DCH BAH MRCGP FFOM H Dip Ot Health MFFLM

Israel
Mark Casson BoS FICD

Malaysia
Anand Bhupalan ma chBivepeoy MACPUK
Datuk Dr Yee Moh Chal MP MLA LLBHons) MB BCh FFFLM

Singapore
Joanna Lin M8 BSH cn) MACPIUK) FHKCP FHKAM FAM(SING)
Lawrence Ng MB BS MCFPS M MedFM DioPDermvWales) MBA(UK) EDip(Shanghar JTU}

South Africa
Tony Benrman va Ghs DOH FFFLM
Liz Meyer MB Chs MPharmMod MMadifamMed)Prt FFFLM

New Zealand
Head of Medical Services
Brendon Gray ma Cha LLB MPH MRCEP FAFPHMRACP) FACLM

Medicolegal Advisers and Consultants
Tim CookS0nN MB Lhs MRNCGP Dip Obs DUH
Denys Court MB ChB BAD DRCOG MRCGP

Alzn DOris MB ChB MPhil LLM (Mad Law) MRGPsych
Aine McCoy Ms 8Ch BAO DRCOC MACGP FRNZOGR
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Dental Division

Dentai Director
Kevin Lewis B0S FOSRCSEng) FFCDMUK) LDSACSEng)

Head of Dental Services (L.ondon)
Alan Caohen BDs LDSRCS ACIAG

Head of Dental Services {Leeds)
Brian Edin mns

Head of Dental Services (Edinburgh)
Hugh Harvie 80s FOSACS(Eain) FOSRCPS(Glasg) FFGDPUK) Dip For MED

Communications
Dawvid Croser 8ps LDSACS MFGDPUK}

Semor Dentolegal Advisers

Michael Clarke mpPhi BDS DGDPUK

Brian Westbury LM BA BDS LDSACS MCDSRCS
Susan Willatt LLv Bos MBA

Dentolegal Advisers

Susan Boynton s 8os

Andrew Coller Limaps

Caroline Chapman v Bns
Leonard D'Cruz LM BDS LDSRGS MFGOP{UK)
Julia Densem LM PgOL BDS LDSACS
James Foster LM BDS MFGDPUK
Stephen Henderson toasus
Joseph Ingham eos

Bryan Johnson sps

Helen Kangy LM eos

Alasdarr McKelvie 1 Lmaps

Jane Mervale Luv 8ps

Simon Quelch oPos MACDPUK) BOS
Ra; Rattan MBE BDS MFGDR(LK} PgDip MDE
Raw Rattan 1hencs sgip DM
Lynn Rees LM BDS DGDPUK)

Alan Seaton Los

Phil Shaw BDS LDS DGDP MGDS DPOS
Yvonne Shaw 11M schi DPDS
Stephanie Twidale T e0s DSOPK)

Associate Dentolegal Advisers

Bobby Broadfoot psm BDS MGDE MBA

(George Bureau MRD RCS{ENG) MClinDent FDSRCS B80S
lain Corran LLB BDS DGORUK) MA

Martin Foster meH DS

David Hartoch mrenruk) 805

Richard Hartley eos Mraor MEd

Jill Jagger 8ns pGoPUK)

Adrian Millen eos oros

Dawvig Murphy eos DeDPUK

Nikolzus Palmer pho MFGDRUK) BDS

Sudnir Radia stat Exam MFGDPUK) DPDS{Brst) FRFGDP(LK) MGDS RCSENG)
Josef Rich OBE Bos DGoPLK FDSRGS

Michaet Starkey 80s MFGDPUK

Bernard Switherm MFGDPUK) BDS

Lesley Taylor 8os LDsRes

Barry Tiernan soentsc BA

Martin Vait LLB BChD MSe MSurgllent DipConSed MEGD®
Clare Walsh Bos MML DipFMs

Martin Woodhead Bos LDSRCSEdn

Jane Worthington sos

Lee Worthington BDS MFGOPUK)

Hygienist and Therapist Advisers
uK

Carole Colins poH

Marina Harms LLm 8sc BoH

Austrata
Vicks Bddle roH

Semior Cases Consuttant
Michael Butterworth LLm BDS DODPIUK MFDSIRCS) FICD MCIAD

Cases Cansultants
Austraha

David Evans poscnce
John Kidd eosiaia Fico
Annalene Westion sos MHL

New Zealand
David Crum pDs(Ctage) DipCinDent(Otaga) FICD FADI
Paul Scott BDSOtage} DipGinDent{Otagel FRACDS FICD FACI

Senvor Claims Consultant
Lynn Walters LDsRCS FDSRCS

Claims and Legal Services Division

Director of Claims and Littgation
Ernma Halinan 1 stons) Sotctor

Claims Managers

Martin Beaumont «inst L ex

Caroline Bennett LLBHons) Sotcitor
Michael Byles

Helen Carrngton BaHens) Scheitar
Alson Clarke saHens) Soliater

Paula CGanwell v instix

Antoinette Coltsmann LLBHens) Saetor
Frances Comerford sa Soictor
James Corbin Legal Executve

Alan Dool aci

Paul Dyer LLB Solicitor

Warren Forsyth Ly lons) Salcror
David Hards

Jane Gichnist

Helen Griffith LLB(Hons) Sotcitor

Mark Lawrence esc(Hons) Diplaw Sakcite
Catherine Longstaff aatons) Solerter
Emma Michaels 118 salicitor

Louse Morgan L1 BHons) Solicitor
Rosamund Oddie pag-ons) DipLaw LLD Barnster
Angelicka Dom Pauf eaHons} Solitor
Cariotia Pidgeon sa 118 Bams{ausy Soh oo
Jason Pnston FinstLEx

Sara Rees (L BHons) Sohcttor

Melanie Rowles L BiHens) Sokcitor
Dormiric Stannard sa Hons) Solaitor
Hilary Stesle LB ope

Nicola Stowe MA BSefHens)

Andrew Urbanek LLaiHons) Salkettar
Chris Young LLB(Hons) Scheitor

Solicitors
Willam Bremner maiCantab)
Simon Connolly LLs
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Advisers and Senior Staff continued

George Dodd eaiHons)

Tracay EllS BAlHons) DipLaw Solictor
Mark Jordan saons) Lim
Christina Milng LLemHons;
Rachel Morrs LLgHons)

Susan Silk LLBHens) RGN

Jill Stevens 11 8Hons)

John Taylor LLB(Hons)

Educational Services

Director of Educational Services
John Tiernan Ba BoentsSc DGORUK])

Senior Educational Team

Mark Dinwoodie MaGantsh) MB BS DGM DRCOG DG DFSR IFROGP TIGR MvCd Dunded)
Bronwyn Hartwig MB BS Dip GP Psych Dip Fam Med

Sheena McMain Ms chs MRCP FRCGP MMedSaiPumary Health Care)

Paul Niselle AM MB BS M HihdMedLaw FHACGP FACLM

Mark O'Brien MB BS DRACOG FRAGGP FACRRM AFACHSE

Matthew O'Bnen s sus com

Jule WSO Ba RGN Dip HE

Chair of Educational Advisory Committee
Dame Janet Husband oaE Fuedsa Frer FRCR

Senior Staff

Finance Director
Simeon Kayll BaHons) FCa MBA

Head of Operations, Wast indies and Bermuda
Nancy Boodhoo Brs Fnsacs

Director of Policy and Communications
Stephanie BOWN WeiHons) MB BS MAGP DACOG FFFLM

Director of HR and QOperations
Pauline Brown

Head of information and Analysis
Martin Burns BseHans)

Internal Audit and Compliance Officer
Simoen Clutterbuck vaHors)

Financial Controlier
lan Cook FCcA Cert Icv

Head of Systems and Change
Glen Coultish mse

General Counsel
Sarah Denton matoxon) MBA Solaitor

Head of Marketing
Dawvid Gray 8scHons)

Director of international Operations
Tim Hegan ma ms Bchr DPH PgDLew DFPHM MFFLM

MPS Risk Saluttons Limited — Marketing Director
John Lamb ssetors)

Head of Communications
Shelley McNico! Batons)

Head of Membership
Carol Sherlock BsciHons)
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Report of the Council

The Council, which for the purposes of the Comparies Act
2006 1s the Board of Directors, presents its annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2010

Business review and pnncipal activity

Prncipal activity

MPS 15 a mutual society, the function of which 1s to protect,
support and safeguard the character and interests of medical and
dental practtioners and other healthcare professionals It 1s a non-
profit-making company kmited by guarantee and all ncome and
property must be applied solely towards its objects as defined by
MPS's Memcrandum of Association

One of MPS's objects 1s to grant mdemnity to members In respect
of clams and demands ansing from ther professional practice,
which may result in the payment of costs and damages The
Arfcles of Assocration set down in paragraph 40 state that ‘the
grant of an ndemnity shall be entrely in the discretion of the
Council who shall have the power to Impose such terms and
conditions on the grant of any ndernrity as 1t thinks fit and may n
its absclute discretion imit or restrict such indemnity or deciing
altogether to grant the same’

In addtion to the principal actmvity of the holding compary, the
group has two pringipal trading subsidianes, MPS Risk Solutions
timited, and Cogrutve Consutting Group Pty Limited MPS Risk
Solutions Limited 1s registerad in England and 5 a general
Inslrance company, regulated by the Financial Services Authority,
which provides professional indemmity, malpractice, product and
public labilty cover to comorate heafihcare providers Cognitve
Consulting Group Pty Limited s regstered i Austraba and
provides education and franing in communication skills and nsk
management to medical practiioners There 5 a further major
subsidiary, MPI {London} Limited {MPl), which is reqistered in
England and holds the invested assets on behalf of MPS MPI has
a separate board which 18 responsible for implementing the
nvestment strategy approved by MPS Council Funds are
nvested with third party fund managers and MPI does not
undertake any direct investment actnvity The MPI board 15 also
responsible for overseeaing the investment performance of the third

party managers

Busmess purpose

MPS exists to serve s members MPS ams {0 ensure that
remans a strong viable entity to meet s current and future
cormmitiments to members and that & continues to provide much-
needed services to members for years to come

In providing services to members, subject to discretion and the
scope of the benefits of membership, MFS will meet the costs of
assisting members provided that the request stems from an
Incident that occurred at a time when the member was paying an
appropriate subscnption

This means that f a member seeks advice or an ndemnity refating
to an ncdent from a particular year, providing the member was
paying an appropnate subscnption dunng the year of the ncident
and assistance s granted, then MPS wilt pay all reasonable costs
related to that incident These costs may include representation at a
regulatory councy, assistance with discipiinary proceedings and full
indemnity for damages and costs in cases of negigence Payment
wil be made even though it may be vears after the ncident before

costs are ncurred and the 1ssues are resolved Applying for the
benefits of membership years after the adverse incident, subject
only to having paid the appropnate subscripticn for the period of the
acverse ncident, 1s known as clams-incurred cover

In addition, MPS has developed and continues 1o develop a range
of non-clnical educational courses and nsk management
assessments for members worldwide te help reduce risk and so
improve patient care The educational courses take the form of
workshops, lectures and web-based learning and focus on
communication and interpersonal skifls, practice systems and
processes, professionalsm and ethics

Principal risks and nsk management

All businesses face nsks of one kind or another and prudent
ranagement of the business requires identification, quantification,
management and mmgaton of these nsks, MPS 15 no exception
The identification and mitigation of the key rsks are detalled below
and the process of the management of nsk s detaled m the
section on Internat Controls below

The principal nsks facing MPS and therr mitigation are

W Reserving nsk

MPS provides an indemnity to members for the costs and
damages associated with clams of negligence and the costs
associated with other claims For MPS to provide this support
on a clams-Incurred basis means that at any time there are, as
a result of past adverse incidents, clams that have already
been reported and potential clams that have not yet been
reported {unreported claims) Subject to discretion, MPS will be
responsible for all of these clams

For MPS 1o be responsible for paying these claims, it needs to
be able to assess the value of these clams and ensure that it
has sufficient assets to meet the expected iotal costs

The value of these clarms 15 estmated by MPS and there 1s a
nsk that the eventual payments exceed the sums estimated as
the cost of the clams The uncertanty around estmating the
valug of all clams is greater for unrgported claims, than for
those that have been reported For unreported claims, the
uncertamniies include the number and severity of claims ansing,
how long 1t 1s lkely te take from the date of the adverse incicent
to the making of a clam and how many may be large claims
The uncertanties for the reported claims are a iittle narrower,
but still considerable

in addition 1o the vanation inherent in the claims, there are
also external factors, mainty changes n legislation which can
have a profound impact on ¢lam estimates MPS has seen
a number of changes N legisiation In the UK over the last ten
years, nearly all of which resulted In an increase in the cost
of clams This includes the introduction of periodicals and
the reduction N discount rates The discount rate 1s the rate
used to iranslate’ future cash flows, to be pad under the
settlement agreement into a lump sum value in current
meney terms The lower the discount rate, the higher the
value of the iump sum The discount rate In England and
Wales 1s set by the Lord Chancellor and 1s currently 2 §% In
other countries, the rate at which future cash flows are
discounted to a current value lump sum will be part of the
settlernent negotiations

THE MEDICAL PROTECTIGN SOGIETY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPDRT & ACCOUNTS



~r

16

Report of the Council continued

The likelhood of vanaton in the total outcome from the
expected estimate dimmnishes with the increasing size of the
portfollo  In addiion, the geographical dwversity of the
portfollo also helps to reduce the overall vanation of
expected returns A larger maore diversified portfolo 1s less
Iikely to be affected across the board by a change in any
subset of the portioho

Mitigation

Maintaning a large geographically diverse portfalo of risk 15 a
key step In helping to reduce the variation of outcome around
the expected mean Further steps are around ensurng the
qualty of the expected outcome In the first place and this relies
heawvily on the accuracy of data used and the quaity of analysis
in determining the expected outcome MPS uses the skill of s
nternal staff 1o determine accurate estmates for indwidual
clams |t also ensures that levels of skl are mantaned by
supporting on-going training Intiatives It also has many checks
and balances In its internal systems to review and monitor
these estimates to achieve a high degree of consistency MPS
uses the expenence of its consulting actuary, Lane Clark &
Peacock LLP, to use the nternal indmdual claim estimates and
membership data to armve at a statistical reserve for the lkely
cost of all claims

Underwriting nsk

MPS charges a subscription based on the expected clams of
those members paying the subscrption There 1s a nsk that the
resulting claims from those members will turn out {0 exceed the
expectations contaned within the subscriptions and thus MPS
will not have collected sufficient subscription income

Mitigation

Agan, the skill of staff anc advisers 1s mportant as are the quality
of interna systems In addition, MPS carefully reviews all
applications and makes an assessment on those rsks that t s
wiling to accept MPS also runs an intemal programme to idartify
indwvidual memibers who appear to represent a higher than nomal
nsk and tnes to work with them to reduce thew nsk MPS also
purchases nsurance to cover catastrophic high claims

Market sk

Subscnptions collected in any one year are invested untl they
are needed to pay the costs ansing from the year in which the
subscnptions wers receved The greater the return MPS can
achieve from investments, the less it would theoretically need
to charge in subscriptions However, the greater the investment
return that MPS s trying to achieve from its mvested assets, the
greater will be the fluctuations in the value of those assets and
thus, the greater will be the nisk that MPS will see a fall in the
value of 1s assets Such volahity in the value of MPS's assets
18, when asset values fall, damaging to the strength of the
halance sheet and signficant volatility in mvestment returns
makes it maore difficult to plan for the longer term

Mitigation

MPS has adopted a prudent investment strategy that carefully
dentifies the levels of risk and return acceptable In ts pertfolio
of assets External professional advice 1s regularty sought and
iwestment performance 1 subject to detaded review 1n
conunction with advisers Wherever practical, nsks arising from
currency fluctuation and mvestment hauidity are minimised

The nsk of asset value volatiity 1s addressed in a number of
ways Firstly the majorty of assets are held in bonds and
short-term money market funds, which have a relatively low
level of volatility, secondly there 18 considerable diversty of
those asseis held primanly to achieve an investment return
The eguity element of thess assets 1s held in a number of
different portfolios, each investing in different geographic
areas and equitles are augmented by other return seeking
assets which reduce volatility, because returns from thase
assets are less than perfectly correlated with the returns from
equties

Currency risk

MPS holds assets to meet clams habilities The clams labilities
are In a number of different curencies If the assets are not held
It the same currency as the labdities, then there 1s a nsk that
movements 1N exchange rates will alter the relatve value of
assels to lablies Sometmes this might be beneficial,
sometmes not This 1s a sk that 1s outside the scope of MPS's
business and skil, and should be removed as much as 18
possible

Mitigation

MPS ensures that all major non-stering clam habilties are fully
matched with assets to the same value in the same currency
This 1s fully complied with for Euro and Rand claim liabiltes For
currencies wherg the liabiliies are smafler, it 1s not practical to
operate a local currency designated investment portfoko, so
MPS uses US dollar denominated assets to act as a proxy
match for such labilites Many of these curencies are closely
linked to the US dollar anyway

Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that there will be insufficient iquid assets
avalable to meet payments when they fall due This could
ether result in an inability to make the payment or the need to
terminate an diquid nvestment at an nopportune time, which
could be costly

Mitigation

in managing hgudity rsk, MPS needs to balance the ability
to gan an investment return on 1its assets and the ability to
have sufficient funds to pay lablties as they fall due MPS
operates a sophisticated system through major clearng
banks to ensure that funds are avalable on a daily basis
when required, but otherwise are Invested In pooled money
market funds in addition to this, the invested assets nchude
a short-term money market portfolo with an average
weighted matunty of a maximum of 12 maonths, which
provides additional higuidity if needed

Credit nisk

Credit nsk 1s the risk that someone who owes money to MPS
will fall to pay MPS has liitle nsk from a failure by members
to pay subscriptions, because If payments are not made,
mernbers have no nght to apply for assistance MPS's main
credit nsk anses from either a falure of its insurers or from a
falure of some of the counterpariies involved n derwvatve
finaneial instruments as part of MPS's investment portfolic

Specific comment on thus nsk in relation to dervative financial
instruments 1s provided on page 21
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Mitigation

MPS has a stated policy on the acceptable risk profile for its
insurers This policy states the need to spread the risk
across a number of msurers and dictates the acceptable
financial security rating for nsurers MPS does not review
the credit nsk of counterparties in dervative financial
instruments, but instead agrees parameters with s
mnvestment managers as to what security rating 1s
acceptable for such counterparties

Interest rate / inflation nsk

MFS holds about 65% of its nvesled assets in bonds and
bond pnces move inversely to changes in interest rates, thus
an ncrease N nterest rates wil cause a fall in the price of
bonds The mpact on MPS’s liabilkies 15 more complicated
The man nfluence on the cost of large claims (in the UK} 1s that
element to reflect compensation for future costs or losses,
these are manly loss of earnings and cost of future care An
estmate of the lump sum required to provide for these future
costs I1s determined by reference to a discount factor The
discount factors might be expected to change with changing
interest rate expectations, but In the UK it 1s.1n fact fixed, by the
Lord Chancellor However, with the introduction n 2005 of
periodical payments as an altermatve to lump sum or
structured settlements, compensation can be provided as a
regular monthly payment for the life of the clamant, and these
payments are to be indexed according to the ratal price index
Since the determination of the Appeal In the Thompstone case,
It 1s Increasingly likely that for settiernents subject to penodicals,
the cost of future care will be subject to Indexation by a wage
measure and not the retail pnce iNdex

Specific comment on the interest and iNflation nsk in relation to
cervative financial nstrurnents 1s provided on page 21

Mitigation

Interest rate exposure for bond assets s mitigated firstly by
having a broad range of bond holdings, with different
sensitvities 10 Interest rate movements and secondly by holding
a predominance of index-linked bonds, so that interest rate nses
due to increasing inflation are allowed for n the rebasing of the
capttal value and coupon amount and additional mitigation 1S
providea by the abiity to reduce the tax charge as a result of
indexation MPS's response to the nisk inherent In penodicals 1s
firstly to ensurs that it has an appropriate nvestment make-up
to closely match the labiities and secondly to ensure that it has
sufficient assets to alow a margn in case of unexpected
changes in interest and Inflation rates

Operational nsk

Any orgarusation will be exposed to operational nsk, that 1s to
say the nsk that a falure n s operations may Incur an
addtional cost Examples for MPS might include costs
associated with a2 major fadure of IT systems, fraud, fire in one
of the offices or theft of ts assets

Miigation

MPS has done much to ensure that it has IT back-up systems
and contingency plans in the event of failures or disasters, such
thal there wil be munimal disruption to s business It also
spends tme reviewing and testng d#s mternal business
systems, {0 ensure that they are sufficiently robust to ensure

accuracy of data on which business decisions are based, and
to prevent fraud and theft

Financial targets

Despile the nisk mitigabon identfied above, it 1s Impossible to
elminate nsk Consequently, MPS needs to ensure that it has the
financial resources to cope with the remaining unmitigated nsk so
that it can provide members with the assurance they need that
MPS will be n a posmion to respond to ther requests for
assistance no matter when these are made

To this end, MPS has set financial targets that will ensure that its
assets exceed the estimated value of both its reported claims and
unreported potential claims, to protect aganst the risk that claims
may, for many reasons, when eventually settied, cost more than
anticipated, this 1s known as reserving nsk The financial targets
have been set such that even If these values wera, within certan
parameters, to be higher than expected, or, again within certan
parameters, the value of nvested assets was to be lower than
expected, which 18 known as market nisk, then MPS would stil
have sufficient funds to meet all of ts potential clams

More detad 15 provided on the financial targets in the Finance
Director’s report on pages 5-7

Financial performance for the year

Subscription income has increased In the year, admiristration
costs were close to expectation and nvestment performance has
been positve However, the development of reported clams,
particularly for UK {excluding Scotland) and South Africa, has been
considerably worse than anticipated

More detal of the financial perfermance for the year s provided
within the Finance Director's report on pages 5-7

Key markets

MPS operates 1n a number of different international markets
This international perspective allows many members to practise
around the worid and still enjoy the benefits of MPS
membership [t also allows MPS to use its wide and diverse
experience for the benefit of all its members

MPS's principal markets are
B Hong Kong

B Ireland

B Malaysia

B New Zealand

® Singapore

B South Africa

B United Kingdom

B West Indies and Bermuda

In addion, MPS may pravide the benefits of membership in many
other countnes and f members intend to work abroad, they
should contact ther membership admirustrator to see if continued
membership of MPS 15 possble

MPS has a very strong position n all of the above key markets
Member numbers

The business aim 1s to grow membershp N a controlled manner
without ncreasing the overall nsk exposure of the organisation
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Report of the Council continued

The 2010 increase In total members, including these who don't
pay a subscnption, was 2 5% (2002 0 8%)

With reference to those members who have paid a subscription
to MPS in 2010 and so contrbuied to the 7 6% increase n
subscription and other iIncome for 2010, numbers increased i
the year by 3 8% compared to 4 2% In the previous year

In addition to the growth in member numbers, internal
measurements also show that the rsk profle of the
membership for 2010 compared to 2009 1s lower across the
board, although there was a very shght increase in the nsk
profle of the membership N a couple of countries, most
notably, Hong Kong

Staff and the provision of services

Staff are a vital Ingredient in providing the senice to members
MPS does much to ensure effective recrutment of staff,
appropriate training once recrutted and the provision of
appropriate management, reward and working conditions to
help ensure retention of a skilled resource

MPS continues to invest considerable time to help serror staff
with managing performance, to ensure consistency of
management across the organisation and to ensure that
managers feal supported In taking the decisions necessary for
the business In addition, much has been done to mprove
internal communication, so that staff are more aware of therr
contribution to the success of MPS and more aware of 1ssues
within the business

MPS was reaccredited with the Investors In People Standard in
early 2010

Future developments

The Chief Executive’s report {see pages 3-4) refers 1o
developments during the year and touches on future
developments

For the coming year, MPS's main focus will continue to be the
delvery of a high-quality, cost-effective service to members, the
delivery of education and risk management courses to
members and the continued strengthening of our relationship
with regulators, legislators and professicnal representative
bodles To this end, MPS will continue o ensure that it has the
internal resources necessary to meet demand from members
and will continue to develop its IT and operational systems o
improve ther effictency and cost effectiveness

Danations

Chartable donations made by MPS dunng the year amounted
io £10,188 (2009 £10,000} Donations n 2010 were all in
favour of the Chanties Aid Foundation In lleu of fees wawed by
a Directar of MPI (London) Limited No political donations were
made during the year (2002 Enil)

Employees

During the year MPS continued to provide employees with
retevant information and seek ther views on matters of
common cancern through the Staff Consultatve Group, staff
briefings and through line managers Pricrity 1s gven to ensuning
that employees are aware of all significant matters affecting
MPS’s tradng postion and of any signficant orgarisational

changes MPS also seeks regular feedback from its employees
and a number of different mechanisms exist for this, Including a
regular company-wide staff survey

In 2005, MPS decided to adapt the existing Staff Consuttative
Group in order to comply with the reguirements of the Information
and Consultation of Employees Regulations 2005

It 1s the polcy of MPS to support the employment of disabled
persons where possible, both in recnatmenrt and by retention of
employess who become disabled whilst In the employment of MPS,
as well as generally through traning and career development

Members of the Council
The names of the members of the Council of MPS who served
dunng the year are set out on page 9

Carporate Governance

The Listng Rules of the Financial Services Authortty require isted
companies o disclose how they have applied the principles set out
in Secton 1 of the Combined Code prepared by the Committee on
Corporate Governance and whether they have complied with its
provisions throughout the penod Although not listed, MPS
complies with the Combmed Code where it 1s considered relevant
to its business and constitution The following 1s, where relevant, a
staternent in accordance with the Code

Council

The Counci, which i1s the Board of Directors of MPS, consists
of a non-executve Charman, a Chief Executive, two further
executive members and eleven other non-executive members
MPS's constitution requires that the majonty of Council
members are doctors or dentists and that the Charman s a
doctor or dentist

Of the non-executives (ncluding the Chairman) at the year end,
seven are doctors or dentists and five are not With the
exception of the Chairman, the non-executives are considered
10 be independent The five non-executives who are not a
doctor or dentist have no financial interest in MPS other than
ther fees as members of the Council The seven non-
executves who are a doctor or dentist receve fees as members
of the Counci and some had personal membership with MPS
Their personal membership is not felt sufficient to compromise
ther independence

MPS continues o review the transparency of the independence of
its non-executve directors and to provide appropnate guidelings
for all directors on ther ethical conduct as a director of MPS o this
end, MPS introduiced in 2008, for MPS and its subsidiary boards,
aregister of Interests and also published nternally a Code of Ethical
Conduct for all staff, which will apply equally to members of the
Counci

MPS has separate posts of Charman and Chef Executve to
dfferentiate the running of the Council from the executve
responsiility for the running of the business The Council considers
that the non-executve members of the Council as a group are of a
sufficient calibre and number to bnng strength and independence
to the Council and does not propose to nominate any one non-
executive 10 be a senior Independent member of the Council In
staing this, the Council recogrises that this 1 not e accordance
with the relevant prowision of the Combined Code
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All Councl members, except for the Chief Executve and the
Charman of Dental Protection Limited, are subject to election by
members at the first opporiunity after ther appontment by the
Council and to re-election (exceptng the Chief Executive and the
Charrman of Dental Protection Limited)) at general meetings at least
every three years The Chief Executve 1s appointed by the Gouncil
and can be removed by the Councll The Council recognises that
not subjecting the Chuef Executive to re-election 1s a departure from
the relevant section of the Combined Code, but beleves that
does not compromise the ndependence or Integrity of the Council

The Charman of Dental Protechion Limited 15 a member of the
Councll ex officio, and 1s elected to the post by the Board of Dental
Pratection Limited Dwrectors of Dental Protection Lmied are
elected by the shareholder of the company, which 1s MPS and thus
the Council of MPS has the ability to appont and remove directors
of Dental Protection Limted Non-executve members of the
Councit are lmited to an eight-year term

The Council met formally erght times during the year (@ight times in
2009) In addition to these regular meetngs, the Council also
devoted the better part of a day for an addiional meeting to
consider and review the organsation's business objectves and
strategy The attendance record of members of the Counci at the
eight mestings is shown in table 1 below

The Counci has a scheduls of matters speciically reserved to it
for decision, inciuding strategy, financial polkcy and major
acquistions and disposals Al Council members have access to
the adwice and services of the Company Secretary and
procedures exist for any member of the Council to take
independent advice at MPS’s expense

Non-executve members of the Council met once dunng the year
without the executive members and have the provision to meet
without the executive at any tme that such a meeting may be
reguired There 15 also the provision for the non-executve members
to meet without the Chairman and executive f they wish - this was
not thought necessary dunng 2010

Sub-Commuttees of the Councll
The Counci has a Nomunations, Remuneration and Audit
Commuttee, the members of which are Iisted on page @

The Nomnations Committee s chared by the Charman of the
Council and keeps under review the composition of the Counci
and makes recommendations concerning all new appontments of
non-executve members

The Remuneration Commrttee 15 chared by the Charman of the
Council and 1s responsible for making recommendations to the
Council concerming matters relatng fo remuneration policy See
Remuneration Report below

The Audit Committee 1s chared by a non-executive member of the
Coungl, Frank Attwood, (& former audit partner of an nternational
firn of Chartered Accountants) and met twice In the year MPS's
external auditors, Charman, Chief Executve, Finance Director,
Financial Controller and Internal Audit and Complance Officer also
attend the meetngs and the Committee has an opportunity to
meet the external auditors without management present Other
senior managers attend for specific agenda tems as required The
Audit Committee reviews the adetuacy and effectveness of risk
management and control systems and reviews the scope and
results of the external audt, s cost effectiveness and the
independence and objectvity of the auditors It also reviews, prior
to publication, the annual financial statements and the other
information ncluded in the Annual Report The Audit Committee
also meets annually with, and reviews the work of, the independent
consulting actuaries

The attendance record of members of the Audit Committee 18
shown N table 2 on page 20 The Commuttee meets in March
and November

The Audit Commuttee is responsible for ensunng the continued
ndependence of the exterral auditors  The Committee has a
written palicy on this, which includes reguinng the auditors te
make a statement on ther continued Independence, placing

TABLE 1 - Attendance record of the members of the Council at Council meetings

Member of
the Council

Appointed/Retired

Frank Attwood
Keith Bradley
Trevor Burke
lan Croxford
Nicholas Davies
Mark Davis
Yasmin Drabu
Mary Favier
Kathryn Hartey
Ta) Hassan
Leela Kapila
Simon Kayll
Kevin Lews
Tony Mason
Elzabeth Vallance
Richard Youell

Appainted on 9 June 2010

Appointed on 10 June 2009
Appointed on 10 June 2009

Retired on 9 June 2010

Meetings attended
2010 2009
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Report of the Council continued

brits on the amount of non-audit work undertaken by the
auditors and having a policy covering the commissiorung of
non-audit services from the auditors

Several members of the Council are memters of the Board of MPI
(London) Limited, which manages MPS's investment portfolio, and
of the Board of MPS Risk Sclutions Limited, which provides
general Insurance contracts to corporate healthcare providers
Both Boards are chared by the Chairman of the Councit and the
other Council members are listed on page 2

The Role of the Council

The Council's principal focus 18 the overall strategic direction,
development and control of the MPS group In addition, it 1s
also ultmately responsible for the exercising of discretion in
response to requests for assistance In practice, this 1s
delegated on a dally basis to the executive management and
employees However, the Council 15 specifically involved in
exercising discretton related to potentially controversal,
expensive or unusual requests for assistance

In support of the overall strategy, the Council approves the
group’s values, strategic plans, annual budget and overall
system of nsk identification, management and internal controls
The Council also has control of the group's operatng and
financial performance

The Council agrees the group’s corporate governance framewaork,
as part of which it has empowered the man management
committee, the Executve Committee, who are responsible for day
to day operations

The roles of the Charman and Chief Executive are
documented and the Charman, together with the Chief
Executive and the Secretary, are responsible for ensuring that
the Council 1s kept fully informed and 1S consulted on 1ssues
that are reserved to t and that decisions are made n a timely
manner

Newly appointed members of the Council are given an induction
appropnate 10 ther level of previous expenence

Board evaluation

The Councii undertakes an annual evaluation of its performance
hased upon a questonnare and the invitation for members of the
Councl to speak to the Charrman on performance issues The
resufts of the 2010 evaluation were presented to the Council by
the Chaiman in s February 2011 meeting and resulting actions
were approved by the Council

Internal controf

The Councll has overall responsibility for MPS's system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectveness whilst the role of
management is to implement the Councils polcies on risk and
control The system 1s designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the nsk of falure to achieve the business objectives In pursuing
these objectves, internal controls can only provide reasonable and
not absalute assurance aganst material misstatement or loss

There 15 a continuous process for dentfying, evaluatng and
managing the signficant nsks faced by MPS in ine wath
recommendations in the ongmal and updaled Turnbull report This
has been in place for the full financial year and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report

The process involves the undertaking of regular reviews at
departmental and corporate level From these reviews,
management identifies the key nsks, and determines ther likely
signficance based an the probability of the nsk eccurnng and ts
Ikely impact on MPS d it were to do 50 Management then
determines what action can cost-effectively be taken

The Council has delegated the function of montonng the
effectveness of the systemn of internal control and of the nsk
management process to the Audt Committee The Charman of
the Audit Committee reports outcomes of its meatngs to the
Council and the Council recenves the minutes of all its meetings In
fulfiling its responsibities to the Council, the Audt Committee

B Discusses with the external audrtors ther audit approach, and
agrees any particular aspect of internal control or rnisk
management tc be reviewed by them beyond ther statutory
responsipiities

M Discusses with independent consulting actuaries ther
approach to statistcal reserving of reported clams and
potential clams that have yet to be reported

B Considers the resuits of the external auditors’ work with them
and with management

B Intiates as necessary and considers reports from management
on systems of internal control and on the effectveness of risk
management

B Reports the resulis of s work, with any necessary
recornmendations, to the Councl and ensures that actions
required by the Council are mplemented COne such report 1s
made at the year-end before producing this statement

TABLE 2 — Attendance record of the members of the Audt Committee at Comittee meetings

Member of Appointed/Retired
Audit Committee

Frank Attwood

<eith Bradley Appointed on 1 July 2009
lan Croxford Apponted on 1 July 2009
Lesla Kapila

Elizabeth Vallance

Meetings attended
2010 2009
2 2
2 1
2 1
2 2
2 2
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MPS has an Internal Audit tearn whose responstbilities include
providing assurance over a wide range of Issues including
financial, corporate and operational risks Assurance s
provided thraugh reporting and the provision of opinion
following a range of monitoring activities, discussion and review
The Internal Audit function 18 Independent from all operational
depariments and s work I1s overseen and coordinated by the
Internal Audit and Comphance Officer, whe also works closely
with the external audiiars and attends the Audit Commitiee
meetings The Audit Committee 15 responsible for monitoring
and reviewing the work of the Internal Audit team The Audit
Committee recewes summarnes of all internal audt reports | 1s
involved n approving the annual internal audit plan and 1s able
to guestion the Internal Audit and Compliance Officer about his
work at each committee meeting

Remuneration report

The Remuneration Commuttee 15 responsible for recommending
to the Councll, fees for members of the Council, Committees
and drectors of subsidiaries as well as deciding the
remuneration of senior staff and recening recommendations
from the Chief Executive for the remuneration of other
employees In framing its policy, the Remuneration Cornmittee
ams to attract and retain senior staff to run MPS successfully
wrthout making excessive payments

In 2008 MPS, for the first time, nstigated an ncentive scheme
paying a modest reward to the nine most senor staff (excluding
the Chief Executive} based on performance of a range of cntera
It remains that the non-executve members of the Council do not
recenve any incentive or performance-related remuneration
Because MPS s not a listed company, this report 1s not required
to comply with the rules on Remuneration Reports

Detals of the Chief Executive’s and non-executive Council
Members’ remuneration are included at note 6 to the accounts

Relations with members

The provisions of the Combined Code relate to communication
by companes with ther shareholders and thus some of the
details do not apply to the different relationship that MPS has with
its members However, the general tenor of the provisions s
applicable to MPS and MPS values its dialogue with members

TABLE 3 - Contracts entered into during the year

The Council also uses the Annual General Meetng to
communicate financial performance with members and
encourages ther partcpaticn Mambers of the Audit, Nomination
and Remuneraton commutiess will be present at the Annual
General Meeting to respond to any relevant questions if necessary

The notice for the Annual General Meeting 1S sent to members at
least 20 working days before the meeting date

Derivative financial instruments

Durng the year MPS's investment managers held dervative
financial nstruments to enhance Investment returns The net
recognised gans and losses resuling from holding these
contracts are included in note 4 under other nvestment
mcome These instruments were held to take advantage of
short-term changes in bond market prices During the year this
was achieved by enterng inte a number of contracts, which
involve the purchase or sale ¢of an underlying asset at a price
fixed today for delvery at some date in the future Table 3 below
explains the contracls that were entered into dunng the year

Risk characteristics of derivative financial instruments

interest rate nsk

MPS's dervatives are sensitive 10 interest rate movements so it 1s
necessary to determine the interest rate rnsk that such contracts
will be exposed to This 15 done by comparing the risk of the
underlying asset aganst the risk of the derivative

For an asset such as a bond the risk s calculated by multiplying
the dirty price (the price of the bond plus accrued interest) of the
bond by its modffied duration The bond future nsk 1s then
calculated by muitpplying the bond nsk by a conversion factor
used in the pricing of the contract The bond risk and future rnisk
are then compared to determine the number of futures contracts
that need to be held

Credit Risk

Creddt nsk encompasses all forms of counterparty risk MPS
manages this nisk through tts investment policy, which sets out
the type and qualty of investments that can be held and the
maximum exposure o any particular investment Credit nsk 1s
further managed by all such dervative contracts being of short
term duration

Currency  Contract Type Currency  Contract Type

AUD 3 year bond future Uusob 5 year note fulure

AUD 10 year bond future ush 2 year note future

EUR Euro-Bobl future UsD 10 year note future

EUR 30 year Eurg-Buxl future uso Ultra Bond future

EUR Euro-Schatz future usD 80 day Euro future

EUR 3 month Eunbor future ZAR Bond future

GBP 90 cay Sterling future ZAR Fixed interest rate swap
GBP Long Gilt future ZAR Variable interest rate swap
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Report of the Council continued

Going concern

Members of the Councl consider that MPS has adequate
resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and
that 1t 1s therefore appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in prepanng the financial statements Members of the Council
have satisfied themselves that MPS s mn a sound financial
pesition

In forming this view, Members of the Council have considered
the guidance set cut in the Financial Reporting Council's report
— Update for Audit Committees issues ansing from current
econarmc conditions — published in November 2010

Auditors

Grant Thornion UK LLP, having expressed ther willingness to
continue 0 office, will be deemed reappointed for the next
financial year in accordance with section 487(2) of the
Companies Act 2006 unless the company recewes notice
under section 488(1) of the Companies Act 2008

Statement of the Council's responsibility for the
Financ¢ial Statements

The Council 1s responsible for preparing the Report of the
Council and the financial statements N accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Council to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the Council
has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounang Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)

Under company law the Council must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
far view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company
and the net coninbution avarlable to meet future habiliies and
charges of the group for that perod

In preparing these financial statements, the Council are required to

W sglect suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

W make jdgments and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

B state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements,

B prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
untess it 1s inappropnate to presume that the company will
continue In business

The Council 1s responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonabile accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanities

In 50 far as each Council member 1$ aware

B there 1s no relevant audt information of which the company’s
auditors are unaware, and

8 the Council members have taken all steps that they ought
to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit sformation and to establish that the auditors are
aware of that information

The Council 1s responsible for the mantenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial wwformation mncluded on the
company's website Legislation i the Uruted Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemmation of financal
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Approval
This report was approved by the Council on 13 Apni 2011 and
signed on its behalf by

Simon Kayli

Company Secretary
33 Cavendish Square, London, W1G 0PS

SWKU
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Independent Auditor’s report
to the Members of The Medical Protection Society Limited

We have audited the financial statements of The Medical
Protection Society Limited for the year ended 31 December
2010 which comprises the consolidated income and
expenditure account, the consoldated statement of total
recognised gams and losses, the consohdated and company
balance sheets, the consolidated cash flow statement, and the
related notes These financial statements have been prepared
under the accounting policies set out therein The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in ther preparation
1s applicabie law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body,
n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audt work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auddor's report and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility 10 anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audnt work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the Council and auditors
As explained more fully in the Council's Responsibilities Statement
set out on page 22, the Council 1s responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they gve a
true and far view Our responsibilty 1s to audit and express an
opinign on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's {APB's} Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1
provided on the APB's wabsite at

www fr¢ org uk/apb/scope/private cim

Opinion on financial statements
In our apirvon the financial statements

B gve a true and far view of the state of the group's and the
parent company's affars as at 31 December 2010 and of the
net contribution avalable to mest future liabiites and charges
of the group for the year then ended,

W have been properly prepared n accordance with Unted
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

W have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act
2006

In our opnion the iInformation gven in the Report of Councl for the
financial year for which the financial staternents are prepared 1s
congistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, n
our opINIon

B adequate accountng records have not been kept by the
parent cormpany, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not wisited by us, or

W the parent company financial statements are not N agresment
with the accounting records and returns, or

M certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

B we have not receved all the information and explanations we
requirg for our audt

Crect Tervjwa € el

Andrew Wood

Sernor Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP,
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Leeds, England

13 April 2011
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Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2010

Notes

15
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Ja

3b
3c
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 2010 2009
Year ended 31 December 2010 £'000 £'000
{income: continuing operations
Members' subscrptions and other nceme 296,644 275,650
Expenditure
Clams costs and associated legal costs (including costs of insurance) 258,71 190,873
Insurance recoveries {4,929) {19,700}
Advisory costs and associated legal costs 52,651 46,808
Education, publications and external relations 7,853 5,461
Adminisiration expenses 17,049 15,640
Loss on exchange movements 226 12,570
331,551 251,850
(Deficit)/excess of members’ subscriptions and other income over expenditure:
continuing operations (34,907) 24,000
Income from investments 28,505 29,726
Other finance ncome/{e«pense) 580 2
Realsed gans/(osses) from disposal of nvestments 4,207 (14,896)
Contribution from ordinary activities before taxation {1,815) 38,828
Tax on nvestment iIncome and gains {7,897) (79}
Net contribution for the year available to meet future habilities and charges (9,512) 38,749
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED 2010 2009
GAINS AND LOSSES £'000 £'000
Net contnbution for the financigl year {9,512} 38,749
Surplus on revaluation of investments 121,993 95,848
Oefict on revaluation of fixed assets - 838
Actuanal gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension scherne 3,175 (8.140)
Tax charge on nvestment gans (10,018) (9,269)
Total recognised gains 105,638 116,350
NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST INCOME 2010 2009
AND EXPENDITURE £'000 £'000
Reported net contribution before tax {1,815) 38,828
Realisation of valuation gains of previous years 34,326 55477
Difference between a histoncal cost depreciation charge and the actugl

depreciation charge of the year catculated on the revalued amount 13 29
Histoncal cost net contribution before tax 32,724 94,334
Histoncal cost net contnbution after tax 14,809 84,986
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY 2010 2009 2010 2009
BALANCE SHEETS GROUP GROUP  COMPANY  COMPANY
At 31 December 2010 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000
Fixed assels
Intangible assets - - 378 -
Tangible assets 8,896 8,606 8,894 8,428
Investments 1,527,192 1,296,999 921,010 856,011
1,536,088 1,305,605 930,282 864,439
Current assets
Debtors  — due within one year 12,585 13,925 108,254 91,615
— due after one year 29,605 26,714 29,605 26,714
Bank deposit accounis 79,950 88,812 12,676 79,083
Cash at bank and in hand 3,636 4,073 3,410 3,952
125,776 133,524 153,945 141,364
Creditors — amounts faling due within one year {54,432) (50,348) {44,362) (49,179)
Net current assets 71,344 83178 109,583 92,185
Total assets loss current ltabiiities 1,607,432 1,388,783 1,039,865 956,624
Provision for kabilities {(592,126) (473,854) (582,238) {470,853)
Net assets excluding pension asset/(liabiity) 1,015,306 914,929 457,627 485,771
Pension asset/{labilty) 3,448 {1,813 3,448 (1,813}
Net assets 1,018,754 913,118 461,075 483,958
Accumulated funds
Revaluation reserve 203,753 116,099 178 191
Income and expenditure 815,001 797,017 450,897 483,767
Funds available to meet future habrlities/and charges 1,018,754 913,116 461,075 483,958

Nicholas Davies y M

Chairman of the Council
13 Apnl 2011

The Medical Protection Society Limited
Registered Company No. 36142

THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITFD | ANNUAL REPDRT & AGUOUNTS




Notes

18
18

20

27

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 2010 2009
Year ended 31 December 2010 £000 £'000
Net cash nflow from operating actvities 82,576 95,288
Returns on investment and servicing of finance 28,505 29,726
Taxation {9,683} {29,721}
Acquisition of subsidiary company (306} (267)
Caprtal expendrture and financial nvestrment (111,175) (95,754}
(10,083) (728)

Net cash nflow from management of liquid rescurces
(comprising bank deposits and investment deposits) 9,648 3,602
(Decrease)/increase in ¢cash in the penod {437) 2,874
Analysis of changes in net funds At Cash flow At
1/4/2010 movement  31/12/2010
£'000 £'000 £°000
Cash at bank and in hand 4,073 437) 3,636
Bank deposit accounts 88,812 (8,862} 79,950
Cash with investment managers 12,589 (784) 11,805
Net funds 105,474 (10,083} 95,391
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds 2010 2009
£:000 £'000
(Decrease)ncrease (n cash (437) 2,874
Cash flow from decrease in net qud resources (9,646) (3,602)
(10,083) (728)
Net funds at 4 January 105,474 106,202
Net funds at 31 December 95,391 105,474
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The financial statements are prepared In accordance with apphcable accounting standards and MPS s constrution

Convention
The financial staterments ncluds investments and freehola property at valuation but in all other respects have been prepared in accordance
with the historical cost corvertion The principal accounting pokcies adopted by MPS within that corvention are set cut below

Accounting policies

Consolidation

The Group finaricial staternents comprise a consolidation of the financial statements of the parent company (the "Company”) and all
its subsidiary undertakings (together, the “Group”) as at 31 December and as identified n note 12 As a consoldated income and
expenditure account 18 published, a separate income and expendrture account for the parent company 1s omitted from the group
financial staterents by virtue of Section 408 of the Comparues Act 2008 The parent company net contribution for the year to 31
Decemper 2010 was a deficit of £26 1m, as shown in note 16

Subscriptions

Subscrption mcome cormpnses amounts recenvable dunng the year, apportioned to accounting periods on a time basis and stated
at the far value of the consideration recevabie 1t 15 recognised when the Company has performed s obligations and n exchange
obtaned the nght to consideration No geographical analysis of subscnption mcome is shown because, n the opinion of the Councl,
it would be senously prejudicial for the Group to do so

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation

intangible fixed assets are included at cost Amortisation is provided evenly on the cost of Intangble fixed assets, to wnte them down
to nif value over ther expected usefu! ives Where there 1s evidence of impairment, intangidle assets are written down to therr current
valuation, with any such write down being charged to operating profts The annual amortisation rate used IS

Copyrights — 4% per annum

Tangibte fixed assets and depreciation

All freshold land and bulldings are included at valuahon Valuations are kept up-to-date Other tangble fixed assets are included at
cost Depreciaton 1s provided evenly on the cost {or valuation where appropriate) of tangible fixed assets, to wrte them down to
therr estimated residual values over ther expected useful Ives Where there 13 evidence of impairment, fixed assets are wntten down
10 recoverable amounts Any such write down would be charged to operating profit unless it was a reversal of a past revaluation
surplus N which case it would be taken to the statement of total recognised gans and losses No depreciation 1s provided ¢n
freehold tand

The principal annual rates used for other assets are

Freehold buldngs = 2% per annum
Leasehold property - over life of leases
Furniture and fittings - 5% per annum
Office equipment — 15% per annum
Computers — 33 3% per annum

Transiation of foreign currency transactions

Incomne and expenditure in foregn currencies are translated {o thew stering equivalent at the rate ruling at the transaction date
Monetary assets and llabiities appearng in the balance sheet are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at 31 December or at a
rate fixed n advance by way of a forward exchange contract Any gains or losses are taken to the income and expenditure account,
except for those ansing from investments held n foreign currencies and at valuation, which are taken to the statement of total
recognised gamns and iosses

Interest receivable and dividends

Interest recevable s brought Into account on an accruals basis As MPS's eguity investments are in pooted funds and unit trusts,
ncome 15 reinvested rather than distnbuted  Such ncome 1s therefore iIncluded within urrealised gains on Investments rather than
beng recorded n the accounts as dvidend Incoms

Investments

Listed nvestments (which include cash held by the investment managers awating nvestment) are ncluded n the balance sheet at
market valuation The net surplus or deficit on revafuation 1s credited or charged to the revaluation reserve In accordance with FRS3,
on disposal the proceeds are compared with the carrying value and the gain or loss credited or charged to the income and
expenditure account

Unisted investments are ncluded in the balance sheet at the lower of therr sterling cost or net asset value
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investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less provision for imparment where necessary to reduce book value to recoverable
amount Cost 1s purchase price including acquistion expenses, but excluding any payment for accrued interest or fixed dividend
entitlernent

Denvative financial instruments
The Group's Investment managers are permitted to hold dervative financial nstruments to enhance rvestment returns  Dervatives
are held at cost and as such are not farr valued through the income and expenditure account

Realised gains and losses ansng as a result of holding denvatives are taken directly to the mcome and expendiiure account

Costs and damages for claims of negligence

Provisicn 1s made for estmated future costs and damages, lega! costs and claims handling costs expected to anse from clams that
have been nctrfied to MPS by 31 December in respect of which the Council has exercised or 1S expectea to exercise its discretion
to provicle ndemnity The estmate of these costs s stated before deducting estimated recovenies fram insurers, which are disclosed
separately and are recognised only when it 1s virtually certan that rembursement will be receved

The discounted future settlernent values are deemead o be the best estmate of these costs

No provision 15 made for the potential clams that may anse from incidents that cccurred before 31 Decernber but had not been
reparted to MPS at that date

Costs related to ail other ¢laims

Provision 13 made at discounted future sattlement values for estimated future costs, including handing costs, of these claims that
have been notified to MPS by 31 December in respect of which the Council has exercised or 15 expected 1o exercise its discretion
to provide assistance

The discounted future settiement values are deemed 10 be the best estimate of these costs No provision 1s made for the potental
clams that may anse frorn ncidents that occurred before 31 December but had not been reported 1o MPS at that date

Tax
Provision is made in the financial statements for tax on investment and trading ncome receved and recevable m the year, revaluation
gans and losses recognised in respect of UK and International bonds and on other Investments disposed of dunng the year

No deferred tax prowision 1s required to be reflected in the financial statements Whilst there 1s a tming difference ansing between
the accounting and taxat:ion treatment of certan non-monetary assets, N accordance with FRS19, deferred tax 1s not provided on
timing dfferences ansing from the revaluaton of non-monetary assets, where there 15 no binding agreement 1o sell these assets at
the balance sheet date

Deferred tax s measured at the tax rates that are expected 10 apply i the pernicds when the tming differences are expected to
reverse, based on tax rates and law enacted or substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and labities
are not discounted

Where law or accounting standards require gans and losses to be recogrised in the statement of total recognised gams and losses
the related taxation 1s also taken directly to the statement of total recognised gains and losses in due course

Pensions

MPS cperates a defined benefit pension scheme The assets of the scheme are nvested and managed independently of MPS's
finances The pension schems assets are measured using market values Pension scheme lablities are measured using the
projected unit actuanal method and are discounted at the current rate of return on a high quaity corpeorate bond of eguvalent term
and currency 10 the liabilty Any increase in the present value of llabilbes within MPS's defined benefit scheme expected to anse from
employes service in the penod 1S charged to operating profit The expected return on the scheme's assets and the ncrease during
the penod in the present values of the scheme’s labiities ansing from the passage of tme are included in other finance income
Actuanal gans and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of total recogrised gains and losses

Pension scheme surpluses, to the extent they are considered recoverable, or deficits are recogrised in full on the face of the balance
shest

Further iInformation on the structure of the defined benefit scheme 1s contaned within note 8 to these accounts
Operating lease agreements
Leases where substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the group are treated as operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged agamst profits on a straight-ine basis over the penod of the lease

Operating lease ncentves are recognised, on a straight-ine basis, as a reduction of the rental expense over the shorter of the lease
term and the penod to the first rent review where market rentals will be payable
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Education, pubhcations and external relations

Included under this classification are costs associated with developing and delivenng education and risk management senvices to
members with the am of reducing nsk, and laising with regulators, legistators and professional representative bodies around the

world on behalf of members and the wider professions, on matters relevant to MPS and its members

Administration expenses

Included under this classification are
Operating lease rendals — Land and buiidings
- Motor vehicles
- Office equipment
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Cepreciation of fixed assets

Auditor’s remuneration
Services to the Company and its subsidiaries
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the annual financal statements

Fees payable o the Company’s auditor and ts associates for other services

— Audtt of the financial statements of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legisiation
— Other services relating to taxation — complance and advice

- Accounting advice

Services to the Company’s associated pension scheme
- Audtt of the financial statements of the scheme pursuant to legistation

Exchange movements

2010
£'000

2,521

115

1,590

63

o8

2009
£'000

2173

99
41

1,591

59

12
64

The majorty of the losses on exchange rmovements relate to the restalement of International bonds and cash assets held to match
international llabikies These losses are substantially offset by a comesponding decrease n international clam liabilites, which are

included n costs within the increase In the overall clams provisions (note 15)

Net income from investments 2010 2009
£°000 £'000

Bond and gilt interest 25,811 26,461
Bank interest 1,160 1,862
Other nvestment income 1,534 1,403
28,505 29,726

Other investrment income includes realised gains ansing fror dervatve financial mstruments, which are discussed In more detail I

the Report of the Council on page 21

As roted in 2(), dmvdend income from MPS's equity investments 1s not distributed but 1s reinvested and included In unrealised gains

on investments rather than as investment Income
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5a Tax onincome and gamns from investments 2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Tax on income and gains included in the income and expenditure account for the year
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income and gains for the year at 28% (2009 28%) 8,693 1M
Adustment in respect of pnor years 811) (52)
Double taxation relef 3) 9
7,879 50
Foregn tax
Current tax on income for the year 18 29
Tax on investment income and garmns in the income and expenditure account {see note Sh} 7,897 79
Tax on other gains included in the statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year
UK corporation tax
Current tax charge on gaing for the year at 28% (2009 28%) 10,018 9,269
Tax on other gains included in the statement of total recognised gains and [osses
for the year 10,018 9,269
5b Factors affecting tax charge for the year
Current tax reconciiation
Differences between the current tax charge for the penod and the expected tax charge 2010 2009
based on the current rate of 28% (2009 28%) are explaned below £°000 £'000
Contribuhion before 1ax per accounts (1,615) 38,828
Non-taxable contribution 25,005 (39,549)
Income and net gans/(losses) from investments included n the Income and expenditure
account for the year 23,390 (721)
Income and net gains/{ffosses) from investments muttiplied by the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 28% (2008 28%) 6,549 (202
Effects of
Depreciation in excess of capial allowances 3 3
Non-taxable dmvdend income {160) -
Realised Investment income taxed as gains 2,059 -
Double tax relef 3} ©
Adjustment in respect of pnar years {811} (52}
Loss carry back for MPS Risk Solutions Limited 239 -
Other short term timing differences 3 -
Tax on Income from unlisted investments not yet recogrised - 308
Current tax charge for the year 7,879 50

The non-taxable contnbution abave 1s the deficit/(surplus) of members’ subiscnption ncome over related expenditure, which, due to
MPS's mutual status, 1s not subject to corporation tax

5¢ Unprovided deferred taxation

A £24 9 millon (2009 £14 1 millon) tax charge would anse should MPS's equity nvestments and freehold property be sold at the
market values at which they are included in the balance shest
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32 Notes to the accounts continued

6 Emoluments of members of the Council 2010 2009
£°000 £:000

Aggregate amount of emoluments paid to members of the Council
(ncluding executive members) 1,008 Q77
Charman 52 51

Highest pad member of the Council

Cheef Executve - standard emoluments and taxable benefits 261 254
- bonus 3 28
- accrued annual defined benefit pension nghts 7 5
- employer contributions to defined contnbution pension scheme 25 24

There are 3 (2009 3} executve members of the Councit who are members of MPS's defined benefit pension scheme, detalls of
which are set out In note 8

The standard remuneratian for all non-executive members of the Council (other than the Chairman) was £19,985 (2009 £19,435)
An increase of £490 per annum was mpiemented on 1 March 2010 The following members of the Counct, who were members of
other Boards and Commitees, recenved additional remuneration as detaled below

Council Member Addrtional Remuneration {£) Council Member Addittonal Remuneration (£)
Frank Attwocd 14.461 Kathryr Harley 11,579
Keith Bradley 2,420 Tay Hassan 7,260
Trevor Burke 14,623 Leela Kapila 4,840
lan Croxford 2,420 Elzabsth Valance 2,420
Mark Davis 2,420 Richard Youell 2,420
Mary Favier 2,420

In addiion, and as stated in the Report of the Council on page 18, 6 members of the Councit had personal membership of MPS

7 Employees

The average number of pecple employed by the Group and the Company during the year was 427 (2009 382)

Costs in respact of these smployesas were 2010 2009
£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 19,547 17,344
Social secunty costs 1,991 1,771
Pension Costs 3,095 1,985
24,633 21,100
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8 Pensions

MPS operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme, The MPS Pension Scheme The scheme funds are administered by
Trustees and are independent of MPS's finances Contnbutions are paid to the scheme In accordance with the Schedule of
Contnbutions agreed between the Trustees and MPS

The last full actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2008 was updated to the accountng date by an independent qualified actuary n
accordance with FRS17 As required by FRS17, the value of the defined benefit labilites has been measured using the projected
unit method

The following tables set owt the key FRS17 assumptions used for the scheme The tables also set out, as at the accourting date,
the far values of the assets, analysed by asset class, the present value of the scheme habilhies and the resulting pension surpius
FRS17 requires that this surplus be shown as “Pension asset” on the face of the balance sheet

Principal actuanal assumptions At 31 December At 31 December

2010 2009

% pa % pa
Prnice inflation 3.7 38
Discount rate 5.4 56
Pension increases (LP1 5%) 3.5 37
Pension increases (LP 3%) 2.7 28
Salary growth 52 53
Expected return on assets at start of year 6.7 58

On the basis of the assumptions used for Iife expectancy, a male pensioner currently aged 80 would te expected 1o Iive for a further
28 2 years (2009 28 1 years} Allowance 1s made for future improvements in life expectancy

Balance sheet

At 31 December

At 31 December

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Defined benefit obligation 64,332 57,495
Far value of scheme assets (67,780) (55.682)
Pension {asset)/hability in the balance sheet {3,448) 1,813
The current allocation of pension At 31 December At 31 December
scheme assets 1s as follows 2010 2009
% £'000 % £'000

Equities 54 36,408 &80 33,420
Bonds 18 12,450 19 10,701
Liabilty driven investrment 17 11,695 19 10,767
Property 1 636 1 595
Diversified growth fund 9 6,438 - -
Cash 1 155 1 198
Total 100 67,780 100 55,682
The following ameounts are recognised In 2010 2009
the income and expenditure account £'000 £'000
Current service cost 2,936 1,892
interest cost 3,290 2,662
Expected return on pension scheme assets (3,870} {2,660)
Total expense recognised In Income and expenditure account 2,356 1,894

Within the iIncome and expenditure account, current service costs are recogrised within admunsstration expenses, and the net of
interest costs and the expected return on pension scheme assets 1S recognised as other finance income/{expense) For 2010 this
was an income of £580,000, and for 2009, an expense of £2,000
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34 Notes to the accounts continued

8 Pensions: continued

The defined benefit ocbligation moved over the year as follows 2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Opening defined benefit obligation 57,495 40,987
Cumrent service cost 2,936 1,892
Interest cost 3,290 2,662
Contnbutions by scheme members 642 587
Actuarial losses 1,007 12,618
Benefits pad (1,038) (1.251)
Closing defined benefit obligation 64,332 57,495
The fair value of the scheme assets moved over the year as follows 2010 2009

£°000 £'000
Opening far value of scheme assets 55,682 44952
Expected return on scheme assats 3,870 2,660
Actuarnal gains 4,182 4,478
Contributions by the employer 4,442 4,256
Contributions by scheme members 642 587
Benefits paid {1,038} (1,251}
Closing fair value of scheme assets 67,780 55,682
The actual return on scheme assets was 8,052 7,138

Over the year to 31 December 2010, MPS made contributions of £4,441,642 (2008 £4,255,601) to the scheme it has been agreed
that future employer contnbutions will be at a rate of 16% of pensionable salaries for 80th scale members, 23% of pensionable
salanes for other scale members and a further £1,500,000 pa to fund the deficl revealed as part of the 2008 valuation Contributions
will be reviewed following the completion of the next actuanal valuation due as at 31 December 2011

The following amounts are recognised in the 2010 2008
statement of total recognised gains and losses £'000 £'000
Actuanal {gains)/losses (3,175) 8,140
Five year history 2010 2008 2008 2007 2008

£7000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Defined benefit obhigation 64,332 57,495 40,987 44,831 43,854
Far value of scheme assets (67,780) {55,682) (44,952) (47.672) 43,211)
(Surplus)/defici (3,448) 1,813 (3,965) (2.841) 443
Expenence adustments ¢cn scheme labiities 172 385 - - 814
Experience adjustments on scheme assets (4,182} (4,478) 7,603 {766) {1,595)
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Intangible fixed assets Copynght
£'000

Company

Cost

At 1 January 2010 -

Additons 394

At 31 December 2010 394

Amortisation

At 1 January 2010 -

Provided in year 16

At 31 December 2010 16

Net book value

At 31 December 2010 378

At 31 December 2009

The intangible fixed asset above relates to copynghts for educational traning material purchased by the parent company from
another group company, The Cognrive Consulting Group Pty bimited {See note 12)

Tangible foxed assets Freehold Leasehold Computers, Motor Total
property property furniture, fittings vehicles
and office
equipment

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
Cost or valuation
At January 2010 4,350 2,008 8,632 25 14,915
Additons 60 126 1,699 - 1,885
Disposals - - (191} - (191}
At 31 December 2010 4,410 2,134 10,040 25 16,609
Depreciation
At 1 January 2010 - 666 5,641 2 6,309
Provided in year 105 266 1,214 5 1,580
Released on disposals - - (188) - {188
At 31 December 2010 105 932 6,669 7 7,713
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 4,305 1,202 3,3M 18 8,896
At 31 December 2009 4,350 1,342 2,891 23 8,606
Company
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2010 4,350 1,841 8,252 25 14,568
Additions 80 223 1,750 - 2,033
Disposals - — (191) - {191)
At 31 December 2010 4,410 2,164 9,811 25 16,410
Depreciation
At 1 January 2010 - 661 5477 2 6,140
Provided i year 105 265 1,187 5 1,562
Released on disposals - - (186) - (186)
At 31 December 2010 105 926 6,478 7 7,516
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 4,305 1,238 3,333 18 8,894
At 31 December 2009 4 350 1,280 2,775 23 8,428

All the leasehold properties held at 31 December 2010 are short leaseholds
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36 Notes to the accounts continued

10 Tangible fixed assets. continued

Assets included at valuation

The freehold property was onginally revalued on 31 December 1899 on the basis of the Existing Use Value including notional directly
attnbutable acquistion costs The valuation was independent and external and was carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung,
Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with the Appraisat and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors In the
Intervening period further full and intenm valuations have been carned out by the above Chartered Surveyors in accordance with
FRS15, Tangble Fixed Assets The last full valuation was carned out on 31 December 2009

If the freshold property had not been revalued it would have been included in the balance shest at the following amount

£'000
Cost 5,341
Depreciation (1,211}
At 31 December 2010 4,130
At 31 December 2009 4,162

Capital commitments
Capital expendrture approved and contracted for amounted to € mil (2009 £ ni)

11 Investments 2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group  Company Company

£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000

Valuation or cost at 1 January 1,296,999 1,132,382 856,011 766,056
Additions and increase N Investment i subsidiary underakings 445,790 645,339 65,305 80,267
Disposals at camying value (332,293) (566,817} - {45}
Frovision for impairment of investment in subsidiary undertakings - - (306) (267}
Maovement in cash (784} 1,581 - -
Foreign exchange losses on hsted nvestments 4,513} {11,344) - -
Surplus on revaluation of ksted investments 121,993 95,848 - -
At 31 December 1,527,192 1,298,999 921,010 856,011

Investments comprise
Listed on UK Stock Exchange

- Equities 169,746 105,604 - -
- Government and other bonds 832,206 688,532 - -
Listed on overseas Stock Exchanges

- Equities 229,771 182,276 - -
- Government and other bonds 195,001 229,014 - -
Underlying assets hsted on multiple Stock Exchanges 41,316 40,508 - -
Unlisted 47,347 38.476 - -
Shares in group undertakings - - 921,010 856,011
Cash 11,805 12,589 - -

1,527,192 1,286,999 921,010 856,011

Histoncal cost of investments 1,302,685 1,155,646 921,010 856,011
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12 Investment in subsidiary undertakings

MPS has the following interests N subsidiary undertakings

Parent and group

Cost of parent

Country of

Group Pty Limited”

Name mterest in ordinary mvestment incorporation Nature
shares and £'000 or registration of business
voting rights
To manage the advisory and
Dental Protection Limited 100% - England admnistrative affars of the
dental dwvision of MPS
To manage the investment
0,
MPI {L.ondon} Limited 100% 910,001 England portioko
To manage the administratve
DPL Australia Pty Limited 100% - Australa affaws of Dental Protection
Limited in Australla
The prowision of general
MPS Risk Solutions insurance contracts to
Limited 100% 11,000 England orgarnisations in the healthcare
sector
MPS Periodical Payrments
Trustee Limited 100% - England Corporate Trustes
MPS Holdings Australia o
Pty Limited 100% 9 Australa Holding company
To provide commurnication skais
The Cognitve Consutting 100% _ Australa and nsk management traning to

healthcare professionals In
Austraia,

*indirectly owned by MPS

All the above subsidianes operate N ther country of Mcorporation or registration

THE MEDIGAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LINITED | ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS

37



Notes to the accounts continued

13 Debtors 2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group  Company Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Receivable within one year
Corporation tax - 215 - -
Trade debtors 405 356 82 45
Recoverable insurance clams 7,401 8,905 7,401 8,905
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 96,122 78,862
Other debtors 293 760 209 20
Prepayments 4,486 3,689 4,440 3,602
12,585 13,925 108,254 91,615
Receivable after one year
Recoverable insurance clams 29,605 28,714 29,605 26,714
Total debtors 42,180 40,639 137,859 118,329
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Company Company
14 Creditors' amounts falling due £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
within one year
Corporation tax 8,017 - 868 1,832
Other taxes and socal secunty 1,783 1,367 1,711 1,326
Other creditors and accruals 5,986 10,997 4,776 9,482
Deferred subscnption ncome 38,646 37,982 37,007 36,830
54,432 50,346 44,362 48179
Reported Reported Claims Total
negligence other handling clams
clams claims
15 Prowision for habilities £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Group
At 1 January 2010 417,985 34,149 21,720 473,854

Movements in the year
- Charged ta the income and expenditure account
- Reported negligence clams 246,365 12,336 258,701

34,839 17,812 52,651

— Reported other clams -
Paict (140 286) {28,062} (24,732} {193,080)
At 31 December 2010 524,064 40,926 27,136 592,126
Company
At 1 January 2010 415,127 34,149 21,577 470,853

Movements in the year
- Charged to the ncome and expenditure account
- Reported negligence clams 239,855 12,002 251,657

34,839 17,812 52,851

- Reported other clams -
Pad (140,135) {28,062) (24,726) (192,923)
At 31 December 2010 514,647 40,926 26,665 582,238

The reported neghgence clams provision 1s the estimated discounted future setflement values for damages and legal costs in respect
aof all negligence claims notified by 31 December The reported other clams provision 1S the estimated discounted future settlement
value of fegal costs relating o these clams notrfied by 31 December The claims handing provision 1s the estimated nternal cost of
managing alt reported claims to conclusion

The timing of Indwdual clam payments IS uncertain, as they are the subject of liigation

The reported negligence clams provision s stated before insurance recovenies of £35 8m (2009 £33 4m) that are estimated to be
recoverable from MPS's insurers

Although FRS12 requires that the unwinding of the discount within a provision be shown separately It 1s not considered practical for
these provisions, due to the complexities of the many actuanal calculations mvolved
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17

18

19

Movement on reserves Revaluation Income and Accumulated
expenditure

£'000 £000 £000
Group
At 1 January 2010 116,099 797,017 913,116
Surplus on revaluation of Iisted Investments 121,893 - 121,993
Realsed on disposal of nvestments (34,328) 34,326 -
Actuarial gans recogrised in pension scheme - 3,175 3,175
Tax charge on recognised investment gans - {10,018} {10,018}
Release of depreciation on revalued property 13) 13 -
Net contnbution for the year after tax - {8,512 {8,512)
At 31 December 2010 203,753 815,001 1,018,754
Company
At 1 January 2010 191 483,767 483,958
Actuanal losses recognised 10 penston scheme - 3,175 3,175
Release of depreciation on revalued property (13) 13 -
Net contribution for the year after taxation - {26,058} (26,058}
At 31 December 2010 178 460,897 461,075
Reconcihation of movements in funds 2010 2009
available to meet future habilities and charges £'000 £ 000
Net contnbution for the financial year (9,512) 38749
Cther recognised gains relating to the year 125,168 86,870
Tax charge on nvestment gans (10,018) (9.269)
Tota! recogrised gans 105,638 118,350
Opening funds avalable t6 meet future iabities and charges 913,116 796,766
Closing funds available to meet future babilities and charges (see note 22) 1,018,754 913,116
Reconciliation of ([deficitj/excess of income 2010 2009
over expenditure to operating cash flows £'000 £2°000
{Deficit)/excess of income over expenditure (34,807) 24,000
Deprecation charges 1,590 1,591
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 5 6
increase i provisions 118,272 75,548
Increase m debtors (1,766) {21.509)
(Decrease)/increass in creditors {3,625) 6,672
Foreign exchange losses on listed investments 4,513 11,344
Cash pension contnbutions more than current senvice cost (1,506} (2.364)
Net cash inflow trom operating activities 82,576 95,288
Returns on investment and servicing of finance 2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Interest receved 1,160 1,862
Bond and gilt interest receved 25,811 26,461
Other interest 1,534 1,403
Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance 28,505 28,726
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| 40 Notes to the accounts continued

20 Capital expenditure and financial investment 2010 2009
£'000 £'0c0
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (1,885) {2.336)
Purchase of Investments {445,790) (645,339)
Proceeds from sale of investments 336,500 561,921
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment {111,175) (95,754)
21 Commitments 2010 2003 2010 2009
Group Group Company Company
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Operating lease commitments
Land and buildings, leases expinng
= Two to five years 1,335 1,343 1,316 1,343
- Greater than five years 1,136 1,063 1,136 1,063
2,471 2,408 2,452 2,406
Moator vehicles, leases expirng
~Within one year 3 2 3 2
— Two to five years 20 12 20 12
23 14 23 14
Office equipment [eases expiring
~ Two to five years 62 49 62 49
62 49 62 49

| MPS has guaranteed that ts subsidiaries have adequats resources to meet ther habilities as they fall due

MPS has 1ssued a letter of credit to MPS Risk Solutions Limited in the sum of £20 millon

22 Potential claims that have not yet heen reported

‘ Unregorted ncidents up ta 31 December may give nsa to clams in the future These potential clams, which do not constitute a
: contingent liabilty because recognition of the lisbility ts dependant on the Council exercising its discretion, will, to the extent to which
the Counci exercises that discretion to Indemniy, become MPS's responsibility Lnder the occurrence basis of cover MPS provides
The funds on the balance sheet at 31 December 2010 are more than sufficient to cover the cost of these potential clams based on
an actuanal assessment prepared by an independent firm of consulting actuanes and detalled n a report prepared 1N accordance
with the Guidanca Note "Generai Insurance Business Acluanal Reports (GN12)" published by the Faculty of Actuanes and Institute

of Actuanes

23 Obligations of Members

MPS has the nght to call each year for additional funds from ts members up to an amount egual to the annual subscription

24 Guarantee

MPS 15 imied by guarantes not exceeding £1 per member

THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS




Professional advisers

Investment Managers

State Street Global Advisers Limiteg
25 Bank Street

London

E14 5NU

Investac Asset Management SA
36 Hans Stmdom Avenue
Foreshore

Cape Town 8001

South Africa

AllanceBernsten Limited
1 Mayfar Place

London

WIX 6

Macquane Capital Funds (Europe) Limited
Level 35, CityPaint

1 Ropemaker Street

London

EC2Y 9HD

Macquane Capital Funds Limited
125 West 55th Street

Level 22

New York

NY 10019

United States of Amenca

Schroder Investment Management Limited
31 Gresham Street

London

EC2V 7TQA

Newton Investment Management Ltd
Bank of New York Mellon Centre

160 Queen Victona Strest

London

EC4V 4LA

Ruffer LLP

80 Victona Street
London

SWIE 5L

FRM Investment Management Limited
7th Floor, The Adelphi

1-11 John Adam Street

London

WOC2N 6HT

BlackRock Asset Management treland Ltd
JP Morgan House

International Financial Services Centre
Dublin 1

Irefand
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Solicitors

MPS retains a panel
of over 40 law firms
around the world to
provide advice to
members

Audrtors

Grant Thornton UK LLP
No 1 Whitehall Riverside
Whitehall Road

Leeds

LS14BN

Actuaries

Lane Clark & Peacock LLP
30 Old Burlingtor: Strest
London

WIS 3NN

Insurance Brokers

Miller Insurance Services Limited
Dawson House

5 Jewry Street

London

EC3N 2PJ

Bankers
Barclays Bank plc
1 Churchill Place
London

E14 5HP

HSBC Bark plc

Yorkshire Corporate Banking Centre
4% Floor, City Point

28 King Street

Leeds

LS21 2HL
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PROFESSIONAL SUPPORT AND EXPERT ADVICE

The Medical Protection
Society Limited

33 Cavendish Square
London, W1G OPS
United Kingdom

Tel +44 ()20 7399 1300
Fax +44 (0)20 7399 1301

Granary Wharf House
Leeds, LS11 5PY
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)313 243 6436
Fax +44 (0)113 241 0500

39 George Street
Edinburgh, EH2 2HN
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)131 240 1840
Fax +44 (0}131 240 1878

info@mps org uk
WWW MPs org uk
www medicalprotection org

Dental Protection
Limited

33 Cavendish Square
London, W1G OPS
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)20 7399 1400
Fax +44 (0)20 7399 1401

Granary Wharf House
Leeds, LS11 5PY
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0113 243 6436
Fax +44 (0)113 241 0601

39 George Street
Edinburgh, EH2 2HN
Unrted Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)131 240 1840
Fax +44 (0131 240 1878

info@dpl org uk

www dentalprotection org uk

MPS Risk Solutions
Limited

Granary Wharf House
Leeds, LS11 SPY
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)113 241 0395
Fax +44 {0113 241 0387

INnfo@mpsrs ¢o uk
WWwW MpSrs o uk

MPS Risk Solutions 1s a
general Insurance company
regulated by the FSA

Cognitive Cansulting
Group Pty Limited

85 Park Road, Milton
Brishane, Cueenstand
4064 Australa

Tel +81 7 3876 5711
Fax +61 7 3876 6522



